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Financial and operational highlights B # Kk & E R =

Financial performance BI7§%3R Global distribution network 2 k5 #5484

In HK$Smn In HK$mn 30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BYEET BEEET —E——fF —T—TF Change
Year ended Year ended ~A=t+AH ~NA=+A (214
30 June 2011 30 June 2010 .
BE-_Z——& HE-T T4 Change Ho.ng Kong &i&
NE=+ALEE SA=+BILEE T3 Directly managed stores 39 41 ¥2
HEEEERS
Revenue MWz 2,642 2,306 ™ 15%
Gross profit EFI 1,354 1,190 14% Mainland China Bl Xk
Profit from operating activities % i % 7 7 168 114 46% Directly managed stores 456 436 120
Profit for the year attributable to owners A A &5 4F A7 130 90 1 44% HEEEEH
Basic EPS (in HK cents) SREARZF GEIL) 8.07 5.66 1+ 43% Franchised stores 315 297 ™18
- ) — - FERTACE T4
Ir‘\tenm dividend per sharg (in HK cents) &R EARLE. (BAL) 2.20 1.10 1100% Sub-total 771 733 238
Final dividend per share (in HK cents) SRS (L) 3.03 2.30 *32% N
Special dividend per share (in HK cents) &A% 8. (A1L) 1.20 0.30 2 300%
Payout ratio (%) RELLE (%) 80% 65% ?15% pts EEHEZ Taiwan &
) Directly managed stores 94 86 ™8
Gross margin (%) EFIE (%) 51.3% 51.6% ¥V 0.3% pt EEHE SRS
Operating margin (%) &&EHF% (%) 6% 5% 1% pt EAEDE
Net margin (%) SF&EF% (%) 5% 4% 1% pt a9 Singapore 0
EBITDA REtFIS - BUA - 178 REWH AT 240 186 29% g;ﬂgﬁ;gged stores 29 26 "3
EBITDA margin (%) F&HFI8 « B8 - 18 LB a2 F%= (%) 9% 8% 1% pt {AEHE =B
Capital expenditure AZFx 90 60 1 50% Ma]aysia SBARAEE
Directly managed stores 21 22 (2
HEEEES
Other countries HftEI%R
30 June 2011 30 June 2010 Export franchised stores 521 453 168
—E——F —22F Change L ] e et
NA=+H ~NA=+AH EY
. P, Total £#
Inventory turnoyer (days) ﬁ%HLEﬁ <%>”, 57 48 19 days & Directly managed stores 639 611 428
Inventory level (in HK$mn) FEKF (BEEET) 412 300 +37% S
Return on equity (%) BERIERDEHE (%) 17% 13% 4% pts [HEH 2 :
e o g Franchised stores 836 750 186
Current ratio (times) R#ILLE (%) 2.01 2.16 V7% S A
Net cash' (in HK$mn) B4 E5@T GBI EET) 332 402 V17% il
Total liabilities to equity ratio (%) %88 E¥REETRE R (%) 68% 60% 18% pts EHEHE 1,475 1,361 114

* Inventory held at year end divided by annualised revenue times 365 days 4F#& H 2 17 & AF (L a5 - 365K

T Time deposits, cash and bank balances less bank loans 7= #1720 3R & [ $R1T4 AR IRTTEY 2K

Revenue by geographical market %[& 157 48~ U3

PN

For the year ended 30 June 2011 HE=ZT——FXA=1THILFE

Hong Kong &%

Mainland China = B A

53% (55%)

Malaysia 555 #8258

25% (23%)

Taiwan &/&
11% (11%)

Singapore #7014

2% (2%)

9% (9%)

() Figures for the year ended 30 June 2010 are shown in brackets ZE =T —TF /X A=+ AIEFEZHFUIERER




Global distribution network
IR EHPE

Mainland China # BIA B

Directly managed B &7 456 (436) 7 7 1
Franchised #5748 & 315 (297) (733)

Armenia 5% T 2 (0) directly managed and franchised stores in mainland China
Cambodia i3 2(0) (3R ERRERY ‘ )
Cyprus 5K 9(9)
Dominican Republic
ZHAEMEFIER 5(4)
Egypt &£ & 6 (5) 5 2 1
India ENfE 107 (75)
Indonesia ENfE 18(20) (453>
Libya F 35 3(0) export franchised stores
Malta E @ 8(8) H DA S S
Middle East* F1 5 * 244 (208
Mongolia &
Morocco % &
Myanmar 4 &

Nepal JE 5
Philippines 22 &
Reunion Island BB &
Romania & & /B &8
Russia ff & i

South Korea g é
Thailand Z=E
Venezuela Z s iz
Vietnam i/

183 a75

)

)

)

)

)

)

) directly managed stores in Hong Kong,
) Taiwan, Singapore and Malaysia

) RIRE - A3 % 5 SR P B A IR A
)

)

)

)

Hong Kong &%
Malaysia & 2 78 &2

1 I ; 5 (1 36 1 ) * The Middle East includes UAE, Qatar, Lebanon, Bahrain, Kuwait, Iran, Jordan, Syria, Saudi Arabia, Oman and Iraq

PREFEMALAHEERE - SEE - ZER - B BES - PR HE - BRI DEFEA  MERFTR

Singapore ¥ stores in about 36 countries and regions
: N ; AI36MEEIR Rt () Figures at 30 June 2010 are shown in brackets
Taiwan & /& RoZ-—ZHEXAZTRZEFUERRT

Regional retail performance indicators & Z & % KIRIEIZ

Same-store sales growth (%)* Net sales per sq. ft. (in HK$) Floor area (sq. ft.)
BEHEREER (%)* SRR HER (B%) BEER (FFR)
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2011 30 June 2011
BE=T——F BE-2——% —E2——fF
ANA=THLEFE ANA=THILEFE RA=tH
Hong Kong &7 1% 1% 6,700 6,200 1 8% 140,400 145,300 ¥ 3%
Mainland China B ARE 11% -1% 1,000 900 1% 486,300 445,300 9%
Taiwan && 3% -4% 2,400 2,200 1 9% 125,600 117,900 7%
Singapore # N 14% -1% 7,100 6,200 1 15% 35,600 30,600 16%
Malaysia F53RFaE 8% -12% 1,700 1,400 ™ 21% 27,800 30,200 Vv 8%
Total &% 10% 5% 2,500 2,400 4% 815,700 769,300 6%

* Same-store sales growth is the comparison of sales of the same stores having full month operations in comparable periods
[& /5 S SRS R AR SRR LB RN =2 B 5 2 SEERELL B
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Our vision is to be the
top-of-mind preferred brand leader
RPNES - BEEENGE HiSsHnEl

Bossini International Holdings Limited (the “Company”; stock code on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“stock code”): 592) and its subsidiaries (the "Group” or “Bossini”) is a renowned apparel brand owner,
retailer and franchiser in the region.

Corporate governance report Management discussion and analysis Corporate culture

Headquartered in Hong Kong, Bossini launched its first retail store in 1987. Over the past two decades, it e
EERERE ERE TR RN R

rapidly established an extensive international operating platform and distribution network that extended to a
total of 1,475 stores worldwide. Among these, the Group operated 639 directly managed stores in Hong Kong,
mainland China, Taiwan, Singapore and Malaysia. The Group also further strengthened its brand presence in
mainland China through the establishment of 315 franchised stores. As for other overseas markets, the Group
cooperated with its business partners to establish a total of 521 export franchised stores in about 31

countries, spanning from Southeast Asia, the Middle East, Europe to as far as Central America.

Well-known for its comfortable, easy to mix-and-match, colourful and energetic style,
Bossini offers a full range of good value for money casual wear apparel products including

ladies’, men’s, young and kids’ wear, which are designed to fit customer needs.
Human resources and corporate social responsibilities Directors’ profiles Five-year financial summary
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
F R R

ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 F3&

Dear Shareholders,

The fiscal year 2010/11 was another rewarding one for Bossini,
notwithstanding a backdrop of macroeconomic uncertainties. Despite
some favourable fiscal and monetary policies to stimulate the
economies, the economic conditions in the United States and
Europe continued to be weakened in the past fiscal year, which
inevitably affected some Asian and emerging markets as well.

In a complex and highly competitive operating environment
with ever-changing market trends, our management team
demonstrated skill and professionalism towards achieving
our key objectives and continued to deploy effective
business strategies in response to curves in the market.

In the fiscal year 2010/11, the Group was able to deliver
growth across most of its core markets. | am pleased
to report on behalf of the board of directors (the
"Board”) that we achieved a record high in
revenue with double-digit growth year-on-year,
while the bottom line also delivered respectable

growth in the fiscal year 2010/11.

HEMRER :

BERBEBERRIDAAN  EREE_FT—F

S UBREFEDABRGEEKR - BE—F - %

B A0 BOM B 2% 8 2 S % TR R BSB89 B R B R I

B BB DIFERE - < B0 G2 M E 5 I &
BRMWEBZE -

BH—EAEMMBEFANNELRE BY TEEOER

BY EEERRTEINEXREN KT ELAKEERK

ERER BEMRTARWERRE LRMSE( - GE—

%/ ——RFE AERBERFHROTHHMEER -

AANRR=ERREZR((EZR)MASH  EEE_Z T/

——MRFERSREFHS  RFNBEMLBUER BN T EER
Bi7tiE e



Affirmative Results with Record Highs

During the year under review, Bossini recorded revenue of HK$2,642 million, which was a record high for the
Group and represented encouraging growth of 15% year-on-year. The Group’s profit for the year attributable to
owners also recorded solid growth of 44% year-on-year, reaching HK$130 million. Our financial position remained
healthy and strong, with a net cash balance of HK$332 million as of 30 June 2011. This provides us with strength
and capital for future expansion and further business development.

Fulfilling our ongoing commitment to delivering long-term value to our shareholders, we are pleased to propose
payment of a final dividend of HK3.03 cents per share and a special dividend of HK1.20 cents per share. Together
with the interim dividend of HK2.20 cents per share, the full year dividend will be HK6.43 cents per share, which
was equivalent to a payout ratio of 80% for the fiscal year 2010/11.

Branding for Sustainable Growth

Bossini consistently aspires to develop into a top-of-mind preferred brand leader. During the year under review,
the Group implemented a number of brand building initiatives to further strengthen and enhance our “be happy”
brand value. We launched a region-wide branding campaign “be happy me” in November 2010 to further fortify
our brand equity and customer loyalty. The attitude of happiness and optimism inspired by the “be happy” brand
value resonated with our customers and within the industry, as demonstrated by the recognition and multiple
awards we received during the fiscal year 2010/11.

Our co-branded licensing programme is another distinctive brand-building strategy of the Group. During the fiscal
year 2010/11, we continued to work with internationally renowned licensing partners to launch a number of
successful cross-over collections. These co-branded licensing programmes were well-received by the market and
contributed to the awareness and strengthening of our “be happy” brand value, as well as enabling us to further
strengthen customer loyalty for our “bossini” brand.

Thanks to effective implementation of these brand-building initiatives, the Group achieved modest results in
terms of same-store sales growth across the board, recording double-digit growth in overall same-store sales in
the fiscal year 2010/11. The Hong Kong retail business achieved double-digit growth in same-store sales for two
consecutive years. Same-store sales in mainland China and Singapore also grew by double digits, a proven success
for our brand and business strategies in the region.

CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
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Export Franchising Back on
Expansion Track

Recovered from a difficult year with
expansion in overseas countries, the
export franchising market saw an upward
momentum in fiscal year 2010/11 on the
back of improved economic conditions. Our
export franchising network has returned

to expansion mode which is our enduring
ambition for the long term. The Group added

68 stores to its export franchising network,
bringing the total number of export franchised
stores to 521 as of 30 June 2011. We will continue
our expansion plans in this segment with the aim of
delivering long-term and sustainable growth.

Continued Faith in the Growth Potential of Mainland China

We believe in the enormous growth potential in mainland China, despite the fierce retail competition seen in this
market. We remain confident that our mainland China business will further develop to be a key growth engine in
the medium to long term. With this in mind, the Group aims to further penetrate this market by consolidating its
strategies and intensifying its efforts for brand positioning.

As a result of enhanced marketing efforts and continued network expansion with an additional 38 new stores
during the fiscal year, our mainland China market continued to experience stable revenue growth and achieved
record high.

Considering the enormous growth potential for our business in mainland China, we will step up our brand-
building efforts and accelerate the pace of expansion to increase both brand awareness and market penetration.
In the coming fiscal year, out of the additional 294 new stores that the Group plans to open across the Asia-Pacific
region, 225 stores will be located in mainland China.

Together We'll Make It a Success

The coming fiscal year 2011/12 will be a milestone year for Bossini. It marks our 25th anniversary since the
company was established and demonstrates a proven track record over the course of our business.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 3%
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To commemorate our silver anniversary, we will launch a
region-wide branding campaign in 2012. Comprehensive
and all-round marketing strategies will be put in place
to further amplify our “be happy” brand value and
strengthen our brand equity. We will continue to co-
operate with popular global icons who share common
values with us to create synergies for our brand and
products.

REMASENRERE  ZMABK =
T-_FHOBENEREEEERE B
57 5 DA SR 2 Ko 2 T O T 353 SR o — 2P 3
B[R REE ] B0 an RE (B (B K 58 dm fE B
EoRMASEERRMESXFRERSR
MBI mE A1 - BEFIAmE R
2= mn BlE R 2 a5 o

Global economic conditions remain uncertain with the
threat of the worsening economic status of the United
States and the European debt crisis. The adverse impact

is expected to spread further and hinder economic
growth and the retail environment for some markets in
which we have presence. Nevertheless, we expect that
strong GDP growth and rising domestic consumption in
mainland China as well as in certain emerging countries
will continue and translate to increasing demand for
global branded fashion. We can see challenges together
with opportunities ahead and remain confident and optimistic
about our business prospects. We will continue to adopt a
pragmatic and prudent approach in our expansion plans and
business development, striving to maintain profitability and
achieve sustainability in all of our core markets.

EEEERDCARBMNEREES 2R
REMSRRLEY  FBrtAEPEHE
—SRHEEMER  SRFAMETS
MEEER I TEREHRRNE - AT
BAEMMEER ERFERINER
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RwEL URHEBRE BRABEES
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FAEMED  FRMREXEERE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERBME

The Board is committed to maintain a solid, transparent
and sensible framework of corporate governance for
the Company and its subsidiaries and will continue to
review its effectiveness. The Company has applied the
principle and complied with the code provisions set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for a
deviation as specified and explained below.

Board of Directors

At 30 June 2011, the Board was composed of 3 executive directors
and 3 independent non-executive directors (collectively the
“Directors”) whose biographical details are set out in “Directors’
profiles” section on pages 41 to 42 and are posted on the
Company’s website www.bossini.com. The Directors had no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships with each
other at 30 June 2011.

The 3 independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) represent more

than one-third of the Board. None of them has served more than

nine years and at least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional

qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. All

of the INEDs have confirmed in writing their independence from the Company

and met the requirements set forth in the independence guidelines of the

Listing Rules. All INEDs are also members of the Company’s Audit Committee and

Remuneration Committee. These INEDs are high calibre executives who bring a diversified

range of expertise and serve the crucial function of providing checks and balances for safeguarding the interests
of shareholders and the Group as a whole.

The Board held six full Board meetings in the year under review to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group. The attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings for
the year is set out as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 F#&
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No. of meetings attended/held

SR LEREBITRE
Executive Directors #{TE =
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (Chairman) (re-designated from non-executive director to executive director on 1 October 2010)
FEERET (EE)(RZZ2—ZF+A-HAIRTEETATARTES) 6/6
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund (Chief Executive Officer) 251 2 5t 4 (1T 42 %) 6/6
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul (appointed on 30 August 2010) BB £ A E (R —ZF N \NA=ZTHEZT) 5/5
Ms. CHAN So Kuen (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (resigned on 1 October 2010) fR &=+ (BIEFERITHAR) (R_Z—ZTF+ A —BEHT) 0/3
Independent Non-executive Directors B ¥ #TESE
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond 2 3£ % & 1/6
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han Z%& %2+ 6/6
Prof. SIN Yat Ming & B 8% 6/6

The Board meets regularly at least four times every year. The Directors participated in person or through electronic
means of communication. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in the prior year to provide sufficient notice
to the Directors and facilitate the maximum attendance of the Directors. The Board members are given an
opportunity to include additional matters for discussion and are supplied with relevant information by the senior
management and reports relating to the Group’s operational and financial performance before the scheduled
Board meetings in a timely manner.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board and Committee meetings will be sent to all Directors or Committee
members for their comments and records respectively. The Board member can seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Group’s expense, if necessary.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a transaction to be considered by the Board and the Board has determined
this interest to be material, the individual is required to declare his interest and to abstain from voting. At least
one INED who has no material interest in the transaction shall be present at the full Board meeting approving such
transaction.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separated. Ms. CHAN So Kuen resigned as the Deputy
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1 October 2010 and Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund,
executive director of the Company, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1 October
2010. Currently, Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess is the Chairman and Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund is the Chief
Executive Officer.

EERFRIGHANREZRER EFERFHLFIERETEM
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Appointment and
Re-election of Directors

It is more efficient and in the best interests
of the Company that the new Directors
to be appointed in full Board meeting, as
this allows a more informed and balanced
decision on suitability of the potential
appointee. The background, experience,
professional skills, availability to commit to
the affairs of the Company and, in case of
INED, the independence requirements set out
in the Listing Rules, of the potential appointee
will be taken into consideration.

All INEDs of the Company are appointed for specific

terms, their length of service with the Company is one year from the dates of their

appointments which will be automatically renewed unless early termination by either party

serving not less than three months prior written notice or upon mutual consent on short notice. They are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company (“AGMs") in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Directors receive an induction document on their appointment to the Board as appropriate, covering matters such
as the operation and activities of the Group, the role of the Board, the tasks and membership of the principal
Board committees, the powers delegated to those committees and the Board's governance policies and practices.
On their appointment, Directors are advised on their legal and other duties and obligations as directors of a listed
company.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, all newly appointed director of the Company shall hold office until the
next AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director, save any Director holding office as Chairman or
Managing Director, including those appointed for a specific term shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have been longest in office since
their last election but as between persons who became Directors on the same day shall be determined by lot,
unless they otherwise agree between themselves. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.
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The Chairman of the Company are not subject to retirement by rotation. The Board considers that the continuity
of the Chairman of the Company and her leadership is crucial in maintaining the stability of the Group’s business
operations.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee plays a vital role in corporate governance of the Group and comprises 3 INEDs, namely
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming. Ms. Leung, who has professional
qualifications in accounting and financial management expertise, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. No
member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including the advice of external auditors and Internal Audit
Department to discharge its duties. The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial results for the
year ended 30 June 2011.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set out clearly in the terms of reference which are of
no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code and are available on the Company’s website. The terms
of reference for the Audit Committee are also aligned with the guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee met 2 times during the year to review the accounting policies and practices adopted by
the Group with executive directors, senior management and the Company’s internal and external auditors. It also
discusses matters related to financial reporting, internal controls, risk management and appointment of external
auditors. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the interim and final results of the Group. The
attendance of individual committee members is set out hereunder.

The major works of the Audit Committee during the year are as follows:

(@) reviewed the financial results for the year ended 30 June 2010 and interim financial results for the 6 months
ended 31 December 2010;

(b) reviewed the progress report and report on internal audit results and internal controls for the year ended 30
June 2010 and 6 months ended 31 December 2010 prepared by Internal Audit Department respectively; and

(c) approved and confirmed the annual audit plan for the year ending 30 June 2012 of Internal Audit
Department.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of reference. At 30 June
2011, the Remuneration Committee consists of 1 executive director and 3 INEDs, namely Ms. TSIN Man Kuen
Bess, Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming. Ms. Leung is the Chairman for
the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set out clearly in the terms of reference which
included the duties specified in the CG Code and are available on the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Directors and senior management and the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration.

No director is involved in any decisions as to his own remuneration. The Group’s remuneration policy seeks to
provide a fair market remuneration so as to attract, retain and motivate high quality staff.

One remuneration committee meeting was convened during the year and the attendance of individual committee
members is set out as below:

il =

ARATERIFMERE  CEEHELBBRE - R -F——F~A
StHE #FMEARR—ANTEER=ABLHGITEFER - 55
BEEELT  FXEEE - REMLL R BRRE - R+ AHWH
ZERLR - HHEE R RIRUT WA RET LB -

FHEZEEMIZRERECRERBELEANRERS - A
CEEATAMFENBE  YETERARREEAN -

YR E G RECRIESNARREEAB ZHMBER RARE - kot
BRI EHFMERMBR LN LRMLERENERF  AEERRELE
& e

BMEEESLERERTHFMZEMRE - NAEBZHMBERBUIERM
RNEZHGHH - AR B REHRERET -

ARRANFRACER-—RFHEZEEER  SZREENENHFEFEHR

Audit Committee meetings

Remuneration Committee meetings

P

EREZEREH FHEEaeE
Members of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee Number of meetings attended/held Number of meetings attended/held
ERZESRFMNEESRKE HEIRE, R BITRE HE RS, R BITRE
Chairman =&
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han 2 &% + 2/2 11
Committee members ZE &R &
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess #2154 + N/A 8 B 11
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond 2= 3 f& 5t & 0/2 0/1
Prof. SIN Yat Ming % B BB ##% 2/2 il

Management Committee

The Board has delegated to the Management Committee the authority of dealing with the operational matters of
the Group, save for those matters which are reserved for the Board’s decision and approval pursuant to the written
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terms of reference, which includes taking in charge of major decision making in

relation to the day-to-day business operations of the Company, administering
the Company'’s routine resolutions and dealing with ad-hoc matters, ensuring
adequate funding and reporting periodically to the Board. At 30 June 2011,
the Management Committee consists of 3 executive directors and assumes full
accountability to the Board for all operation of the Group.

Internal controls and internal audit

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal controls particularly in respect of the controls on financial,
operational, compliance and risk management, to achieve the Company’s
business strategies and the Group’s business operations. During the year, the
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal controls through
the Audit Committee.

The Group’s internal controls are evaluated by the Internal Audit Department
independently, operating since August 2002, on an on-going basis and covered
all major operations of the Group on a rotational basis. The key tasks of which
include:

(@) reviewing material aspects of the Group’s key activities and corresponding
internal controls with unrestricted rights of access;

(b) conducting audits on the work practices, procedures and internal controls
established by the business units of the Group on a regular basis in order
to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls system
established;

(c) conducting special reviews and investigations into areas of concern
identified by management; and

(d) monitoring the corrective actions taken by relevant departments.

HNESREHRNEZRER R_T—FA=Z+H &1
HoZRTESHART ARAEBZEKEEBRRNESRA

&

P EBES 12 N N B 2 AT

é%%ﬁa&&h*ﬂ%& =1 BB M N ER
ERERG HRHEME L8 RERRARE

ﬁ%%ﬁ%%@*%%%uﬂ%%%%%%&
SENEKEE -EFA BEEROCBEEX
ZEERIANEZERR BRI -

AREENALEFRE-TZT_F/)\A
iLWWW&%J%%iLﬁFP‘ﬁ
WABRARNREAEEMBEETEEE
B BEXETERIE:

(@) %”%$§@ﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ$%§
BE M EEARBEE

(b) EMERAEERBEMTELNTIE
1BH - B RAREEERRFERE
AEEERGNTBEERE R

(0 SLEEREMBINFERETER
NMAE K

(d) EBBRAFIMETHICERE

ERZEGCHRERANBELRE - MARE
STERBL IR A DA LR A B R T A R B E F R E A

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 ERREMAR AR



18

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERES

The internal audit charter was approved and adopted by the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department
adopted a risk-based approach to develop the annual audit plan, which is reviewed and approved by the Audit
Committee. It furnishes independent and objective evaluations and recommendations in the form of an audit
report to management. Internal Audit staff is authorised to access any information relating to the Company and
to make enquiries to staff concerned, and the head of the Internal Audit Department will directly report to the
Audit Committee on the major audit findings and management responses.

The Internal Audit Department reports twice each year to the Audit Committee and the Board on significant
findings on internal controls. The Board has, through the works of the Audit Committee and the Internal Audit
Department, carried out ongoing examination and monitoring of the Company’s internal controls system and
completed the evaluation of the internal controls system.

The Bossini Group Policy sets forth a set of standards to all employees to govern the operations of the Group
in legal, financial, procurement, human resources, corporate governance and public relation spheres, and will
facilitate the ongoing examination and evaluation of the Group’s compliance with relevant rules and regulations
and of the effectiveness of internal controls. Employees are expected to strictly adhere to the Bossini Group Policy
and encouraged to alert senior management of potential cases of misconduct without fear of retribution. The
Bossini Group Policy was first issued in March 2004. It is taken up for review and renewal on an annual basis by
the designated Group Policy Committee.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Bossini Group Policy laid down a code of conduct regarding the directors’ securities transactions in terms
as stringent as those set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code"”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Based on the specific enquiry made, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Bossini Group Policy throughout the year. Employees are not
encouraged to deal in the securities of the Company within 30 days and 60 days before the interim and the
final results announcements respectively and prohibited to make use of price-sensitive information to deal in the
securities of the Company.

Directors’ interest at 30 June 2011 in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) are set out on
pages 48 to 49.
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Financial Reporting and External Auditors’ Remuneration

The Directors recognise the responsibility for preparing the financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs and of the results and cash flows of the Group on a going concern basis with the support
from the Finance Department. The responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors with respect to the financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 64 to 65.

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory audit work of the Group
amounted to HK$2.66 million, of which a sum of HK$2.32 million was paid to the Group’s principal external
auditor, Ernst & Young (“EY"). The remuneration for EY and its affiliated firms, for services rendered is broken
down below:

T in
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Audit services & &t R % 2.32
Non-audit services 3E2 &1 Bk % 0.60
Total #25t+ 2.92

Communication with shareholders

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information on the Group to shareholders through the
publication of notices, announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. Moreover, additional information is
also available to shareholders through the Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The Board also
welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or management directly.

Corporate transparency and investor relations

The Group disseminates information on business development on a timely basis through various channels to
maintain transparency of its operation. The Company meets with analysts and overseas institutional investors
from time to time so that investors can make recommendations and enquiries. The Company also holds regular
conferences and meetings with financial analysts and investors, at which the Company’s management directly
provides relevant information and data to financial analysts, fund managers and investors, as well as answer their
queries.
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Overview

The financial year 2010/11 was another rewarding year with encouraging results for Bossini, despite
the business environment remained challenging. The deteriorating economic conditions in the
United States and weakened financial status in Europe remained obstacles for the recovery of the
global economy. Although some of the Asian and emerging markets saw modest growth driven
by strong domestic consumption, the retail environment in many of the Asian regions remained
gloomy without a visible rebound in consumer confidence and purchasing power.

During the year under review, the Group continued to effectively implement its business strategies,
namely, enhancement of its core brand value “be happy”; optimisation of internal operational
efficiencies, particularly in supply chain management; and pragmatic network expansion to markets
with promising growth potential. We are pleased that these strategies continued to render positive
results during the year under review. The Group’s revenue increased by double digits and achieved
record high, while the bottom line also delivered respectable growth against the previous year.

The Hong Kong market delivered record highs in both top line and bottom line. Revenue in
mainland China also posted a record high, while the Singapore market experienced a turnaround
in operating profit. The operating loss in Malaysia was also reduced significantly during the year
under review. These evidenced that our implementation of business strategies were gradually
taking effect, resulting in notable improvements in respective market segments.

BE
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Financial Performance

The Group's revenue for the year ended 30 June 2011 recorded encouraging growth of 15% to HK$2,642 million (2010:

HK$2,306 million). Gross profit increased 14% to HK$1,354 million (2010: HK$1,190 million), while the gross margin
was 51.3% (2010: 51.6%), slightly lower than last year, owing to a faster pace of expansion for our franchise
businesses. Operating profit increased 46% to HK$168 million (2010: HK$114 million), while the operating
margin increased 1% point to 6% (2010: 5%). EBITDA for the year under review rose 29% to HK$240 million
(2010: HK$186 million) and accounted for 9% (2010: 8%) of the Group’s total revenue. Profit for the year
attributable to owners increased considerably to HK$130 million (2010: HK$90 million). Basic earnings per

share was HK8.07 cents (2010: HK5.66 cents).

The Group maintained a healthy financial position with cash and bank balances of HK$460 million (2010:
HK$463 million) and net cash balance of HK$332 million as of 30 June 2011 (2010: HK$402 million).

Operating Efficiencies
The Group achieved modest same-store sales growth of 10% (2010: 5% growth) in the year under review, with double-
digit growth in same-store sales in Hong Kong, mainland China and Singapore markets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DM

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEwRD

Total retail floor area increased to 815,700 sq. ft. (2010: 769,300 sq. ft.) as of 30 June 2011, a 6% increase RZE——FA A=1+TH FAEEZTEEELMEES5700E R As consumer sentiment improved during the fiscal year 2010/11 in the

or 46,400 sq. ft. more than that of 30 June 2010. Net sales per sg. ft. increased by 4% to HK$2,500 (2010: (ZZ—ZF 1 769,300F A R) & -E—FF XA =+ HIEIMN6%k Group's export franchising markets, the Group seized opportunities
HK$2,400). 46,400 F FIR o I HIRFEEERE F FHA4%EEH2,500 (ZE—F for network expansion by adding 68 stores to its existing network,

bringing the total number of export franchised stores to 521 (2010:
453) at 30 June 2011.

F B #E2,4007T) ©

Under its stringent cost control measures to enhance cost effectiveness, the Group’s operating expenses for the NEEFERENKNEGIEE  WIBAKARZF - HE2 T ——
year ended 30 June 2011 accounted for 46% of total revenue (2010: 47%), while the operating margin increased FRAZTBLFE EERIMAEEBRZEION (ZF—ZFF :
by 1% point to 6% (2010: 5%). 47%) AEBEEBHNE LAIEABRSHE6 R (ZE—FF :5%) °

Owing to the downsizing of the number of “bossinistyle”
stores before its major revamp in the year 2011/12, only a
net total of 38 new stores were opened in mainland China
during the year under review. There were an addition

of 72 "bossini” stores together with a reduction of 34

Operating Costs Analysis 2 & ik A 5 AT

For the year ended 30 June “bossinistyle” stores. As of 30 June 2011, the Group had
BEXA=tHILEE 771 (2010: 733) stores in mainland China, of which 456
2011 2010 (2010: 436) were directly managed stores and 315 (2010:
- = - 297) were franchised stores.
HK$ million % of revenue

o The Group added 8 stores in Taiwan, bringing the total to 94

Revenue Yz 2,642 100% 2,306 100% +15% (2010: 86) at 30 June 2011.

Selling and distribution costs $4%5 K % #4524 892 34% 791 34% +13%
Administrative expenses 1TH 552 284 11% 254 11% +12% -2/ ——UBFE AL OFHFEETENE
Other operating expenses E fth &&= 32 1% 42 2% -25% BEENBPENRE ALELERBREAEE R ——
Total operating expenses 42 %18 fi sz 1,208 46% 1,087 47% +11% FAPS+ BRReeRI Y NS EE  FAEE ML
AR EEERHEES21M (2T —2F  453/) »

Business Review =75 Bl M AR M BT~ = E 2 EEEE R
Network Expansion WEER [bossinistyle] g - AU ERBEFENZRIGEHBE A
Ever since its beginnings in 1987, the Group has held on to the vision of developing “bossini” into a top-of- REBBE1987F ALK —HEFEbossini | EHRK —EEEE BT T BE - B 5P B K F ) B B2 T AT IS S A 2 R38M - HTIE

[bossinil JE# 72 - M [bossinistyle | /545 B 4> 734/ -
RZE——FXNA=ZTH AEEEPEARELE771HE(ZF

—Z4F : 733W) 54 BIE4S6[ (Z T —TF - 436[) HEE
BRI RISE(ZE—FF  297M) 8B/ -

mind preferred brand leader. During the year under review, the Group achieved robust expansion in its regional EmEES - MBEERN ARERZERREER  NEBENER
network. The Group has presence in 36 countries and regions. As of 30 June 2011, the Group had a total of 1,475 EHEHEBERMEE  RZT——FSA=+TH REEHHAR
(2010: 1,361) stores, an increase of 114 stores compared to 30 June 2010. Of this total, 639 (2010: 611) were 1,475MEH (= —24F 1 1,361/) - R_ZF—ZFTF A=+ HHEM
directly managed stores and 836 (2010: 750) were franchised stores. 148 - BHEERERIEHBE A3 (ZE—ZF 6114) ' B

KR A836M (ZZE—Z 4 : 750f]) °
b MoB——EXA=+E AEERABEREHZUE (=22

F SGFEﬁ) °
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The following is a breakdown of stores by geographical location and store type:

B MEHERE D 2 /I

30 June 2011 30 June 2010
—2——%XA=TH —T-TFAA=FH

Directly managed stores Franchised stores Directly managed stores Franchised stores

EREEEMH BRI RE IR BEEERIES FRRTAS & IR

Hong Kong &% 39 - 41 -
Mainland China /B A BE 456 315 436 297
Taiwan & & 94 - 86 -
Singapore #10% 29 - 26 -
Malaysia 55 2R 75 28 21 - 22 -
Other countries and regions E b B ZR & Hb [& - 521 - 453
Total # 5t 639 836 611 750

Co-branded and Licensed Products

Our co-branded licensing programme remained the Group’s distinctive brand-building strategy. During the fiscal
year 2010/11, we continued working with internationally renowned licensing partners who share common values
and target customer groups with Bossini. We launched a number of well-received campaigns which contributed
to strengthen our “be happy” brand value and enhance overall brand awareness.

Following a successful collaboration in 2007, “bossini” once again teamed up with M&M’s in Fall/Winter 2010,
and was welcomed by fans of all ages. The campaign was highly anticipated by the market, resulting in limited
edition items being sold out in a flash. Besides, “bossini” also joined hands with the classic comic and television
character, the Smurfs to launch a brand-new collection in March 2011, which was also well received by the
market. In June 2011, “bossini” launched a summer collection featuring the popular cartoon figure SpongeBob.
It offers clothing items in vibrant summer colours, and successfully impressed the market with its energetic, lively
and cheerful designs and characteristics.

Operational Performance by Market

Hong Kong, where our businesses comprise both retail and export franchising sales, remained the Group’s primary
market and the major revenue contributor, accounting for 53% (2010: 55%) of the Group’s consolidated revenue
during the year under review. This was followed by mainland China, Taiwan, Singapore and Malaysia, which
accounted for 25% (2010: 23%), 11% (2010: 11%), 9% (2010: 9%) and 2% (2010: 2%), respectively, of the
Group'’s overall consolidated revenue.
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Hong Kong

Having recovered from the global recession in
2009, Hong Kong retail market experienced
an upturn and continued to be an important
driving force for the Group. In addition
to effective implementation of business
strategies together with focused branding
and marketing initiatives and enhanced service
quality, the Group was able to obtain decent
results in Hong Kong market. During the
year under review, the Group recorded a
robust retail performance in Hong Kong
market and also enjoyed a strong rebound

in export franchising sales, resulting

in record high bottom line. Revenues
generated from the Hong Kong market
increased by 10% to yet another record high of
HK$1,410 million (2010: HK$1,281 million).

The total number of directly managed stores and total retail floor area in Hong Kong were 39 (2010: 41) stores
and 140,400 sq. ft. (2010: 145,300 sq. ft.), respectively. Same-store sales achieved an encouraging double-digit
growth for two consecutive years, reaching 11% (2010: 11%) in the year under review, while net sales per sq. ft.
grew by 8% to HK$6,700 (2010: HK$6,200).

Bolstered by satisfactory sales growth, strong brand equity and effective cost management, operating profit from
Hong Kong reached a record high of HK$225 million (2010: HK$170 million), with an operating margin of 16%
(2010: 13%).

During the year under review, economies in emerging markets saw stable growth with improving consumer
sentiment. The Group seized market opportunities for export franchising and continued its expansion mode during
the year under review. An additional 68 stores were opened in the fiscal year 2010/11, bringing the total number
to 521 (2010: 453) in 31 countries.
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Though competition in the retail industry remained fierce in the year under review, the economy of mainland China benefitted from strong domestic consumption
together with proper implementation of our business strategies and enhanced marketing efforts, the Group managed to achieve record high in sales in the mainland
China market, with same-store sales posting a modest 11% growth (2010: 1% decline).

As of 30 June 2011, the number of directly managed stores and franchised stores reached 456 (2010: 436) and 315 (2010: 297), respectively, adding a total of
38 stores during the year under review. Total retail floor area rose to 486,300 sq. ft. (2010: 445,300 sq. ft.). Net sales per sq. ft. increased to HK$1,000 (2010:
HK$900), while revenue generated from mainland China achieved record high of HK$656 million (2010: HK$528 million), an increase of 24% year-on-year.

The Group has been expanding pragmatically its “bossini” stores while consolidating its “bossinistyle” stores as a prelude of its major revamp in
Fall 2011. As at 30 June 2011, a total of 615 (2010: 543) stores were operated under the “bossini” brand and 156 (2010: 190) stores were
operated under the “bossinistyle” label.

The Group recorded an operating loss in mainland China market which amounted to HK$58 million (2010: HK$38 million loss),
representing an operating margin of negative 9% (2010: negative 7%). The widening of operating loss was attributable to the

"bossinistyle” shop consolidating manoeuvre.

During the year under review, the Group continued to target different market segments through offering multi-branded
products including “bossini”, “bossini ladies”, “bossinistyle”, “Yb" and “bossini kids” brands in the mainland China market.
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Taiwan

During the year under review, same-store sales in
the Taiwan market posted an increase of 3%
(2010: 4% decline), while net sales per sq. ft.
increased to HK$2,400 (2010: HK$2,200).

The Group added 8 new stores this year,
taking the total number of stores and
total retail floor area in Taiwan to 94
(2010: 86) stores and 125,600 sq. ft.
(2010: 117,900 sq. ft.), respectively. The
Group’s network expansion contributed
to a 13% increase in revenue to HK$293
million (2010: HK$260 million).

The Group's operating loss in Taiwan
amounted to HK$4 million (2010: HK$3 million
loss), while an operating margin of negative 1%
(2010: negative 1%) was recorded.

Singapore

Singapore’s economy made positive progress

during the year under review. Leveraging on

revived consumer confidence and flourishing

tourism in Singapore, the Group achieved

notable growth in this market with a turnaround

in operating profit during the year under review. The

Group recorded HK$235 million (2010: HK$197 million)

in revenue for the Singapore market in the fiscal year 2010/11.

Same-store sales also posted an encouraging growth of 14% (2010: 1% decline) while net
sales per sg. ft. rose to HK$7,100 (2010: HK$6,200). As of 30 June 2011, there were 29 (2010:
26) directly managed stores in Singapore, with a total retail floor area of 35,600 sq. ft. (2010: 30,600 sq. ft.).

During the year under review, the Group recorded an operating profit of HK$9 million (2010: HK$8 million loss)
in Singapore. The operating margin was positive 4% (2010: negative 4%).
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Malaysia

During the year under review, the Group recorded satisfactory growth in Malaysia due to government policies that
boosted domestic demand and a revival of strong export performance. Revenue generated from this market posted
a record high of HK$48 million (2010: HK$41 million). Same-store sales recorded an increase of 8% (2010: 12%
decline), while net sales per sq. ft. increased to HK$1,700 (2010: HK$1,400). As of 30 June 2011, the number of
stores was 21 (2010: 22) and the total retail floor area amounted to 27,800 sq. ft. (2010: 30,200 sq. ft.).

Operating loss was significantly reduced to HK$4 million (2010: HK$7 million loss) in this market. The operating
margin was negative 8% (2010: negative 17%).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As of 30 June 2011, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted to HK$460 million (2010: HK$463 million),
while the net cash balance came to HK$332 million (2010: HK$402 million). The Group’s current ratio was 2.01
times (2010: 2.16 times) and the total liabilities to equity ratio was 68% (2010: 60%).

The Group had bank borrowings of HK$127 million (2010: HK$61 million) payable within one year. The gearing
ratio as of 30 June 2011, calculated on the basis of bank borrowings over total equity, was 16% (2010: 8%)
compared to 22% as at 31 December 2010.

The Group has some exposures to foreign currency risk. Such exposures have arisen from the sales and investments
in foreign operations using currencies other than the United States dollar and the Hong Kong dollar. It is the
Group’s policy to enter into forward currency contracts to mitigate foreign exchange risk arising from material
transactions denominated in currencies other than the United States dollar and the Hong Kong dollar.

The Group maintained inventory turnover days* of 57 days (2010: 48 days). The return on equity ratio was 17%
(2010: 13%).

#  Inventory held at year end divided by annualised revenue times 365 days

Contingent Liabilities sk A B &
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Company has given guarantees in favour of banks to the extent of HK$694 million (2010: HK$617 million)
with respect to banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries. These facilities were utilised to the extent of
HK$179 million (2010: HK$103 million) as of 30 June 2011.

Human Capital

As of 30 June 2011, the Group employed a total of 4,400 (2010: 4,400) full-time equivalent employees in Hong
Kong, mainland China, Taiwan, Singapore and Malaysia. To promote “the Bossini way”, we continued to offer
regular training and focused programmes on our unique corporate culture — “7 Habits®” and “7 Practices”.
Moreover, the Group has a performance-based and share option remuneration system, and offers benefits
including insurance and retirement schemes as well as discretionary performance bonuses.

Outlook

The global economy is facing a number of challenges created by the European debt crisis and the economic
uncertainties in the United States. Certain Asian countries with open economies are expected to experience a
slowdown. Hong Kong, our primary market, would probably be affected with a deteriorating consumer sentiment
and retail business environment. The Singapore market would also be affected as the potential downturn in the
global economy would hinder the rejuvenation of the Singapore market.

On the other hand, some of the emerging countries in which we have footprints, are less exposed to the financial
crisis. Government policies which are anticipated to stimulate domestic consumption would favour the growth of
the retail industry. Considering both the challenges and opportunities ahead, the Group will maintain a pragmatic
and prudent approach towards achieving its business objectives.

Strong GDP growth and rising domestic consumption power in mainland China translate to increasing demand for
global branded fashion. As per capita income in mainland China is expected to rise further, average spending by
consumers on retail products is also expected to continue the upward trend. Considering the enormous growth
potential in mainland China, the Group will step up its efforts in network expansion to strengthen its foothold
and increase market share in mainland China.

In the coming fiscal year 2011/12, the Group plans to open an additional 294 new stores, of which 225 stores
will be located in the mainland China market, which will bring the total number of stores to about 1,000 by the
next fiscal year. Another 6 stores will be added in Hong Kong. For the export franchising markets, we believe it is
in the Group’s best interest to grow continuously at a pragmatic pace. A total of 46 new stores will be added in
the coming fiscal year.

A brand-new “b.style de flyblue” label will be launched to phase out “bossinistyle” in mainland China with a more
trendy and fashionable touch in style and product design. Store renovation will be modified to complement the
new brand, which is particularly targeting at the Chinese customers.
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2011/12 marks the 25th anniversary of Bossini’s
establishment, which is an important milestone for
the Group in its business development. The Group will
capitalise on this special occasion to launch a major
branding campaign in 2012.

To further optimise internal operational efficiency, expedite
our response to market changes and fully support our
expansion plan, we will further strengthen our supply chain
capability in the coming fiscal year. These objectives are
critical to our target of delivering sustainable growth in the
years ahead.

We believe that sustainable growth and profitability can
only be realised when the Group’s business visions are
supported by our most valuable asset — our employees. It
is through the hard work of our staff that our brand image
is strengthened and further enhanced. Our “be happy”
corporate culture not only applies to our brand but also
to our employees. We believe that committed staff will in
turn deliver better products with greater innovation and
the highest level of customer service, thus rewarding our
customers for their ongoing support and loyalty to our
brand.

In conclusion, our management team remains confident
and optimistic about the promising outlook of our business,
which will enable us to excel in the industry in the coming
fiscal year. We will continue to consolidate Bossini as one
of the most valued apparel brand owners, retailers and
franchisers in the Asia-Pacific region. By accomplishing
these key initiatives, we are dedicated to achieving higher
profitability in the years ahead. Our ultimate goal is to
maintain our dividend payout ratio at over 50% to reward
our shareholders with fruitful long-term returns.
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CORPORATE CULTURE
(2 3¢

Bossini is a learning organisation that treasures knowledge sharing and life-long learning. It encourages employees
to progress and excel every day by offering them comprehensive on-the-job training and focused programme.

In developing a unique corporate culture, the Group launched “the bossini way” in mid 2002 to share with all
staff its vision, mission and shared values, cultivating proactive and positive working attitudes. Since May 2004,
Bossini has been cooperating with Right Management Hong Kong Ltd to provide training for employees in the “7
Habits®".

We believe a corporate culture embracing “the bossini way” together with “7 Habits®” would align the vision and
thus the direction of the Group as a whole.
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“the bossini way”

[ BHiRE.< 78 ]

CORPORATE CULTURE
(2 3¢

AE'

ISION

To be the top-of-mind preferred brand leader
iz Rl EE

BEEEENRE

E
ISSION

To create incremental value for the brand
every day ... in every way
BREETEARBILE

7 Habits® [+{EZE1E® ]

1. Be Proactive® x&)i&fE®

2. Begin with the End in Mind® L& 5 14®

3. Put First Things First® Z£5—®

4. Think Win Win® &5 2 4®

5. Seek First to Understand, then to be Understood® s i# = ®
6. Synergize® Fa& s ®

7. Sharpen the Saw® Tk e #®

/\l_—l Iﬂ/l-l\

HARED
VALUES

Employees and the company are bonded by a
commitment to serve each other’s interests

in the best way possible
ETRARBRFHEAR — BRUHERUEIRETF

7 Practices [{E7 %]

1. Face Reality E¥{IR &

2. Keep it Simple /RFH5E8

3. Act with the Speed of Light #2178}

4. Set Stretch Goals B 1253

5. Drive Quality #&zsskis

6. Create and Sustain a Learning Organisation 2237 #4811 £2 2 B 48 4%

7. Keep the A's, Nurture the B's, Discard the C's {RE8A + 5 5B » #BRC
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Human Resources

In Bossini, we believe employees are our most valuable asset and source of competitive advantage.
Enhancing staff engagement, attracting, developing and retaining high caliber people are our key
strategies for continuous business growth.

As a learning organisation, we treasure knowledge sharing and life-long learning. We encourage
employees to progress and excel every day by offering them comprehensive internal training like selling
skills, customer services, creativity, management and leadership through the Bossini Academy. Besides,
we encourage employees to enhance their professional and personal growth through education
sponsorship. To foster a learning culture, we organised a number of cross functional and organisational
sharing. This year, we start a Bossini Future Leadership Program to strengthen our leadership pipeline.

At Bossini, we aim at developing employees’ talent and virtue as well. In addition to “7 Habits®”
training, we further deepened the culture by setting up 4 core “7 Habits Ambassadors” teams. These
ambassadors were responsible to promote “work-life balance”, “creativity”, “volunteer spirit” and
“cost-effectiveness” within the organisation. This year, we have stepped up by embedding our corporate
culture further into our process for managing individual performance. We have established a clearer link
between our performance and our core and leadership competencies.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
ANERRERHEEA

In June 2011, our outstanding services for the past five consecutive years had been recognised in the annual
QTS Scheme Assessment conducted by the independent professional consultant. Consequently, we have been
awarded the “Outstanding QTS Merchant — Silver Award” organised by Hong Kong Tourism Board for the first
time. At the same time, we have also been honoured with the “10 year QTS Merchant”.

Looking forward, we will continue our commitment and investment in human capital and aim at creating a happy
and sustainable organisation for all stakeholders.

Corporate Social Responsibilities

Over the years, as a caring and responsible corporate citizen, Bossini participated in series of community events
and encouraged our employees to do their best in contributing to the community. Consequently, we have been
awarded as a “Caring Company” for seven consecutive years.

In 2010/11, Bossini and our employees worked hand in hand with our local communities to organise a variety
of initiatives from cleaning the environment to caring the children and elderly. The highlight was the “Employee
Volunteer Weeks” conducting volunteer activities in our core regions, including:

o joining with Yan Chai for lucky bag distribution to the elderly in Hong Kong

o beach cleaning at Taipei Danshui Shalun Beach

o visiting homes for children with intellectual disability in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen and Wuhan
o donating toys to children suffered from hearing loss in Guangzhou

o park cleaning at the Nanjing Xuanwuhu Park

o visiting solitary elderly’s home in Tianjin and Chengdu

o park cleaning at the Shenzhen Mangrove Seashore Ecology Park

Besides the above activities, we also delivered a great deal of pre-employment career talks and interview skills
sharing for the students to help them to enter job market easily. We received affirmative responses from both
students and teachers.

We believe that Corporate Social Responsibility is an on going commitment requiring continuous improvement.

We will continue to invest and promote social responsibilities by building a caring community spirit from within
and spreading it into different walks of life.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
ANERRERHERR
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Caring Company 2004-2011
(by Hong Kong Council of Social Service)
% 5 & B 1E 2004-2011

(BEBHLERBEHSRE)

Singapore Quality Class 2011
(by SPRING Singapore)

N = E AR2011
(ER 3T ISR AT B A 3E)

Outstanding QTS Merchant Silver Award 2011
(by Hong Kong Tourism Board)
B EBE R PR 2011

(HEBREZERBDEE)

Singapore Service Class 2011
(by SPRING Singapore)

TN AR AR2011
(E 3T NSRAR T 2 2R 35D

10-year QTS Mechant
(by Hong Kong Tourism Board)
10FEREEEP
(HEAKREERBDBE)

Singapore Service Star

2010-2011
(by Singapore Tourism Board)
¥k AR 7% 2 £2010-2011
(EB T N3 hR 2 B AR %)

<28 ouauimy TouRisw seRvices
{58 R M 5

Manpower Developer since 2010
(by Employees Retraining Board)
AFEEEBE2010515

(HEEBFIBEE)

TVB Weekly Most Popular Brand Award
2010-The Most Popular Apparel Brand
(by TVB Weekly)

<<TVBJE TlI>>5& 38 A F 58 h# K #22010-
BRXEGORE M

(EATVBJE FI 2 E)

TVB Weekly Outstanding
Award 2010
= (by TVB Weekly)
| <<TVBETI>>H#E H ¥R K52010
(EBTVBATIHE %)
The Best For Home Award 2010-2011
(by Hong Kong Economic Times-Take
Me Home)
ERRERE MEAE2010-2011
(REABLEAFR—EERBREE)

2010 Top 120 Franchisors
20107 B RF A & 512094

(by China Chain Store &
Franchise Association)
(HPEEELEHE)

2010 Quality Services Model
(by Guangzhou General
Chamber of Commerce)
201018 & AR 7% 7 #6 PF 15

(HEMNMEELSEE)
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Executive Directors

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess mH, aged 57, was appointed as the Executive Chairman of the Company in
October 2010, is also a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Ms. Tsin joined the Group
in November 2009 as the Non-executive Chairman of the Company. She received the “Medal of Honour ”
(MH) from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administration Region in 2008. Ms. Tsin is currently
the permanent advisor of the board of directors of Yan Chai Hospital. She was the chairman of the board of
directors of Yan Chai Hospital from 2007 to 2008, the vice-chairman of the board of directors of Yan Chai
Hospital from 2002 to 2007 and the director of Yan Chai Hospital from 1997 to 2002. She has over 11 years'
experience in serving as the school supervisor and director of certain schools of Yan Chai Hospital. She is
responsible for the overall direction of the Group.

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund, aged 47, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group in
October 2010. Mr. Mak graduated from the University of Windsor, Canada with two Bachelor’s Degrees
in Computer Science and Commerce. He is also a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Mak joined the
Group in February 2007 as the Director of Finance. He has over 21 years’ experience in auditing, financial
management and corporate finance in audit firm, consumer electronics and communications products,
real estate service, food retail chain and internet service industries. Mr. Mak is responsible for the overall
management and strategic planning of the Group.

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul, aged 40, was appointed as the Executive Director and the Director of Finance
of the Group in August 2010. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Toronto, Canada and the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration. He is also a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 17 years’ experience in auditing and financial management
with audit firm and various listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is responsible for the overall financial
management, legal, internal audit and investor relation functions of the Group.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond 8ss, /p, aged 40, was appointed in September 2004, is also a member of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee is the chief executive officer
as well as founder of Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 2314). He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Applied
Science from The University of British Columbia in Canada. Mr. Lee is currently involved in a number of public
engagements. Mr. Lee has been awarded honorary citizenship of Dongguan and reputational citizenship
of Changshu. Mr. Lee was awarded the “Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong 2002" and the “2003
Hong Kong Ten Outstanding Young Persons Selection Awardees”. In addition, Mr. Lee received the “Bronze
Bauhinia Star” (BBS) from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2005 and was
also appointed non-official Justice of the Peace (JP) in 2007. Mr. Lee was also appointed the CPPCC National
Committee in 2008.

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han, aged 53, was appointed in September 2004, is also the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Ms. Leung holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Commerce from The University of Queensland, Australia and is a fellow member of CPA Australia. She has
over 26 years' experience in accounting, securities, corporate finance and related areas. Ms. Leung is also
an independent non-executive director of Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited (stock code: 374), Yue Da
Mining Holdings Limited (stock code: 629) and Xiangyu Dredging Holdings Limited (stock code:871) listed on
the Stock Exchange since 1998, 2007 and 2011 respectively.

Prof. SIN Yat Ming, aged 56, was appointed in October 2005, is also a member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Prof. Sin holds a Ph.D. from The University of British
Columbia, Canada. He is a director of Master of Science Programme in Marketing and a professor of
Department of Marketing of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is serving as the advisor for the Hong
Kong Institute of Marketing.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEMBRE

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the period from 1 April 2006 to 30 June 2007, and for the
four years ended 30 June 2008, 30 June 2009, 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2011, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements, is set out below.

NTRAEEH-_ZZRXFHA-BE-_ZTLERNA=ZTALSER  RBE-ZTNFAA=TH ZZETAFRA=T
B ZZ2-"ZFRA=ZFTER-Z——FRAZTHLIMEFEZXE BERAERE  DHEAEBREERVBRE -

Results 45

ne=

Year ended
30 June
2011

BZE

—2——F
AA=+H
LEFE
HK$000
BET T

REVENUE Wz 2,641,967 2,306,260 2,254,126 2,316,869 2,568,325

PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
EEERRR 167,567 114,421 59,812 89,728 36,845
Finance costs &l & K7 (7,548) (4,939) (2,707) (2,204) (1,822)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX %A1 160,019 109,482 57,105 87,524 35,023
Income tax expense Fi{S#tH % (29,906) (19,031) (6,853) (23,949) (25,829)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
ARREE ABEE, BRRF 130,113 90,451 50,252 63,575 9,194

Assets and Liabilities EER &&

30 June 2011
—g——fF

AA=+H
HK$000
BET T

TOTAL ASSETS EE#AE 1,335,894 1,169,217 1,011,511 911,545 845,522
TOTAL LIABILITIES & f&#&E (538,460) (437,444) (338,751) (256,503) (268,965)

797,434 731,773 672,760 655,042 576,557
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2011.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Results and dividends
The Group’s profit for the year and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at 30 June 2011 are
set out in the financial statements on pages 66 to 171.

An interim dividend of HK2.20 cents per ordinary share was paid by the Company on 4 April 2011. The
directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK3.03 cents per ordinary share and a special dividend
of HK1.20 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 24 November 2011. This recommendation has been incorporated in the financial
statements as an allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement of financial position.

Summary of financial information

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the 15 months ended 30
June 2007, and the four years ended 30 June 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out on page 43. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Property, plant and equipment and investment properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively. Further details of the Group’s
investment properties are set out on page 172.
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Share capital and share options
There was no movement in the Company’s authorised share capital during the year.

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital and share options during the year are set out in
notes 30 and 31, respectively, to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 32 to
the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves

At 30 June 2011, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$226,471,000, of which HK$49,061,000 and
HK$19,430,000 have been proposed as a final dividend and a special dividend, respectively, for the year.
Under the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of HK$17,174,000, may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Major customers and suppliers
In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the total
sales for the year.

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 25% of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately 7%. Save
as disclosed in note 36(a)(ii) to the financial statements, none of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group'’s five largest suppliers.
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (re-designated from non-executive director to executive director
on 1 October 2010)

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul

Ms. CHAN So Kuen

(appointed on 30 August 2010)
(resigned on 1 October 2010)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han

Prof. SIN Yat Ming

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond and Ms. LEUNG Mei Han will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms.
LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming, and considers them to be independent.

Directors’ biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on pages 41 to 42 of the annual report.
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Directors’ service contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Directors’ remuneration
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group has been set up by the board of directors or executive
directors on the basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments payable to the directors of the Company will be decided by the board of directors on the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares

At 30 June 2011, the interests of the directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were
as follows:

EERBEK
REEBRRBFAS LERETZES  SEEANRRFTLARE A
R—FARKIEMBAXNEE CEEMERIN 2REEL -

EEME
AEMES Y WEBEMEERRATEFRES Y AL GERE
fizTar o

ARREE HMERMEZRRFTMNZES EENERTZRBY  BE
MRERRURAEBEZXEMETE -

EERROREBKRG 2 #ER

R-F——FRA=1TH EFRARFAHEABER (RERE5 IR
GBI (178 25 R B G 1645 1) SEXVERPTRE T 208 3%) 2 AR AR
BEALNRERES NP ERGIE321&FE L ELMAAREE 2 s -
YR LT ARERETREAFRZNRESTR (BETRI) BHNEERR
RAIRBEMARSMARAR (MM Z#ESMT

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RELR G| B#HRZIFE -
Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest
BREE  SORERMEE
Directly Percentage of
beneficially the Company’s
Note owned Total issued shares
B HAEQTSBIT
Name of director Mt 5 BEEE &t RGBS EEnE
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (@) 1,093,091,098 1,093,091,098 67.51 B2/
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Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares (continued)
Long positions in share options of the Company:

Number of options directly

beneficially owned

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERWMEE

EERROREEKRM 2B (&)
RERAIERIBZIE -

Name of directors EEESHEEZERERB BEEHF

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess 4,000,000 BEeBRZT

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 21,650,000 BEEEE

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul 4,510,000 PeR =2 5k o A
30,160,000

Note: B3 -

(@) Such interests arose by attribution through her spouse, Mr. LAW Ka Sing, whose interests have been mentioned in the
section headed “Substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and underlying shares”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2011, none of the directors had registered an interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares” above and in the section
“Share option scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Further details of the
Scheme are disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.

() FARANERERBERELALRH  HERSMKZTERRNEL K8
BARKAD 2 #as | —Hf o
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H35206 T AR R EHA - RREEETABNG AL FRER
B2 R A A -

ESBEROIES 2ER

PR EXTESERBRO RARRO Z#E] — R T X EkEE] —&
PIREEIN  RRABRAFEAEASHBER TENEFTARER A
ZEBEARKFE FLERBARRZB MK ESMRE R ERN - M
BEMEITERAEMZSEN  RABSREEMNBRRRFARESE
AN AR BEEFANEMEMEABBESILSER -
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EERHLE
Share option scheme (continued) RS E ()
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TRBBEFARRDA]HEARITEREREZ &
Number of share options
BRESE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise price
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period of share
of participants 2010 the year the year the year 2011 share options of share options options
(note a) (note b)
N-B-%F R=B——F B BRE
SEATHESER tA—H FREH FRITE FRRK ~A=+H A BRETHES BRETEE
GBS (B D)
HK$
per share
BRBET
Directors £
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess — 800,000 — — 800,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 0.780
wERLL —“Z-ZF+A+ZH 11 October 2020
—E——5tA+TZHZE
—“Z_ZF+A+-R
— 1,200,000 — — 1,200,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 0.780
—“Z-ZF+A+CZH 11 October 2020
“E-=F+A+=ZHZE
—Z_THE+HA+—H
= 2,000,000 = = 2,000,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 0.780
—“Z-ZF+HA+ZH 11 October 2020
ZE-RAF+A+TZHE
—Z_ZF+A+-H
= 4,000,000 = = 4,000,000
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Share option scheme (continued)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

(continued)

Number of share options

BREE (&)
TREBFARRBHARTERBREZZS : ()

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERWMEE

BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise price
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period of share
of participants 2010 the year the year the year 2011 share options of share options options
(note a) (note b)
R-Z-ZF R-B——F RERE
SEATHEGER tA-H FREH FRITE FRZHW AA=1+H =) BRETHESE BRETEE
(GEL) (Bt5Eb)
HK$
per share
BRBET
Directors E%
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 1,200,000 = = = 1,200,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 0.530
EEEELE —EELFLAMA —ZENFLHANAZE
“T—+tFtH=H
1,800,000 = = = 1,800,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 0.530
—EELFLAMA —Z-EELAWAZE
“T—+tFtH=H
3,000,000 — — — 3,000,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 0.530
—EELFLAMA —T-——FtAmAZE
—T—+tFtH=H
- 1,080,000 - - 1,080,000 5 July 2010 (note e) 0.503
—T-Z5tAHA (PFig5Te)
= 2,800,000 = = 2,800,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 0.780
—F-TFTATZH 11 October 2020
“E——f+HA+=HE
—ZZF+HAT—H
— 4,200,000 — — 4,200,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 0.780
—ZE-ZBF+HA+-H 11 October 2020
—ZT—=5THTZHE
—“Z_ZF+A+—R
= 7,000,000 = = 7,000,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 0.780
—T-TE+HTZH 11 October 2020
“Z-hA¥tHAT-RE
“ECEFTATA
= 570,000 = = 570,000 12 October 2010 (note f) 0.780
—ZT-TE+H+ZH (Fft 5f)
6,000,000 15,650,000 = = 21,650,000
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Share option scheme (continued)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

(continued)

Number of share options

BREE (|
TEREBFARRBHARTERBREZZS : ()

BREZE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise price
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period of share
of participants 2010 the year the year the year 2011 share options of share options options
(note a) (note b)
R-Z-2F R-B——% RERE
SHEALHEZRER tA—H FRARH FRTE FRRK AB=+AH A & BRETES BRETHEE
GEL) (Bt D)
HK$
per share
GREE T
Directors EXE

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul 240,000 - - - 240,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2008 to 0.370

PREFR T E —EELF+—HATNA 18 November 2017

—EENET-ATIABEE

—Z—+E+—HA+N\H
360,000 - - - 360,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2009 to 0.370

—ER+E+—ATNH 18 November 2017

“EZAE+—A+TNAE

—E—tF+—A+N\H
600,000 - - - 600,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2010 to 0.370

—ZT+E+-A+NA 18 November 2017

—E-EE+-A+NAE

—Z—tF+—AT/N\H
= 360,000 = = 360,000 5 July 2010 (note e) 0.503

—E-FFtHRA (Fig5Te)
= 560,000 = = 560,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 0.780

—Z-TE+H+ZH 11 October 2020

“E——f+HA+=ZHE

—ZZTF+HA+—H
— 840,000 — — 840,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 0.780

—ZT-TE+H+ZH 11 October 2020

—T—=fTHTZHZE

—E-EE+A+—H
- 1,400,000 - - 1,400,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 0.780

—T-TE+HTZH 11 October 2020

“E-RET+ATZHE

“E-EFTATA
= 150,000 = = 150,000 12 October 2010 (note f) 0.780

—E-ZF+HA+=H (%)

1,200,000 3,310,000 = = 4,510,000
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Share option scheme (continued)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

(continued)

Number of share options

BREE (&)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EERWMEE

TREBFARRBHARTERBREZZS : ()

BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise price
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period of share
of participants 2010 the year the year the year 2011 share options of share options options
(note a) (note b)
R=B-2F R=B——%§ RBRE
SRATHANER tA-H FREH FRITE FRZHW AA=t1H B BRETHESE BRETEE
(GEL) (Bt5Eb)
HK$
per share
BREET
Directors £

Ms. CHAN So Kuen 2,000,000 = (2,000,000) = = 4 July 2007 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 0.530

(note ¢) —EELFLAMA —EENFLANAZE

BRE IR &+ (Fff5Ec) —Z—+tFtHA=R
3,000,000 = (3,000,000) = = 4 July 2007 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 0.530

TR+ F+ AWA —E-ZELAWBE

—E—+F+H=H
5,000,000 = = (5,000,000) = 4 July 2007 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 0.530

—ER+EF+AMA —T-_FtAMmAZE

—E—+F+H=H
= 1,800,000 = (1,800,000) = 5 July 2010 (note e) 0.503

—ZT-THE+ARH GED)

10,000,000 1,800,000 (5,000,000) (6,800,000) =

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2R EMAR AR



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SEERHRES
Share option scheme (continued) BRESTE (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TREEFARRABARITEEREZZS : (B)

(continued)

Number of share options

BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise price
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period of share
of participants 2010 the year the year the year 2011 share options of share options options
(note a) (note b)
R=B—2F R=B——%
ZEATHERER +tA—-H FREH FRITE FRERK AA=1+H B BRETES BREGEE
(Hf3Ea) (Hizb)
HK$
b share
B TT
Other employees H 1t &
In Ejggregate 3,800,000 = (2,300,000) = 1,500,000 4 July 2007 4 Jul/LCZOOS to 3 July 2017 0.530
& —ZER+E+HMA =% J\itﬂ@ﬁ?
—tF+tH=H
5,700,000 = (2,700,000) = 3,000,000 4 July 2007 4 Ju|£2010 to 3 July 2017 0.530
ZEELFLHMA gitﬂ@ﬁé
—+t¥+HA=H
9,500,000 = = = 9,500,000 4 Jul 2007 4 Jul 2012 to 3 July 2017 0.530
—ETLEL ::—;— F+AMAZE
—tF+tH=H
960,000 = (720,000) = 240,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2008 to 0.370
—EELF+—-ATNAE 18 November 2017
—ZTN\E+-AThBE
—E—+F+—HA+/\H
1,440,000 = (780,000) = 660,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2009 to 0.370
—EELF+—-ATNAE 18 November 2017
:zzn¢+ ATthBEZE
—+E+—HA+//\H
2,400,000 = = (600,000) 1,800,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2010 to 0.370
—EELF+—-ATNAE 18 November 2017
e 2¢+ AThBAZ
—+E+—HA+/\H
240,000 = (240,000) = = 28 January 2008 28 January 2009 to 0.355
ZEENF-A=ZTN\H 27 January 2018
:22%% AZTN\HZE
—N\F—-RAZ++H
360,000 = (360,000) = = 28 January 2008 28 January 2010 to 0.355
ZEENF-A=ZTN\H 27 January 2018
—E-EE-A-_+)\HZE
—E-N\F-A-t+H
600,000 = (600,000) = = 28 January 2008 28 January 2011 to 0.355
—EENF-A=ZTNH 27 January 2018

—F——#—A_1)\BAZ
—E- )\ —A=++tH
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Share option scheme (continued)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

(continued)

Number of share options

BRERTE (|
TREBFARRBHARTERBREZZS : ()

)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERWMEE

BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise price
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period of share
of participants 2010 the year the year the year 2011 share options of share options options
(note a) (note b)
R-Z-2F R=B——% RERE
SHEALHERER tA-H FREH FRITHE FREK AA=t+H A BRETEE BRETEE
(Pft 5Fa) (Bt D)
HK$
per share
FRAE®% T
Other employees Hfti{g &
In zja:cE;gregate 1,200,000 - (1,200,000) - - 26 March 2008 26 March 2009 to 0.357
& —ZEZNFE=ZA=+~H 25 March 2018
:gghi HZT+RBZE
—NE=A=+HH
1,800,000 = (1,800,000) = = 26 March 2008 26 March 2011 to 0.357
—ETN\F=A=+<H 25 March 2018
—BE——F=A=-+,HZE
—ZT-\f¥=H=-+1H
3,000,000 = = = 3,000,000 26 March 2008 26 March 2013 to 0.357
—ETN\F=A=+<H 25 March 2018
ZEE_EEEH —+XHBZE
—N\E=ZA=+HAAH
840,000 = (840,000) = = 15 July 2008 15 Jul 2009 to 14 July 2018 0.333
—EZN\FtHATAHH _77ﬂ¢tﬂ+£55
—Z-N\FtA+mIEA
720,000 = (720,000) = = 15 July 2008 15 July 2010 to 14 July 2018 0.333
“ET/\FtATAH “E-ZFtATHHEE
—ZE-N\FtA+mH
1,740,000 = = = 1,740,000 15 July 2008 15 Jul 2011 to 14 July 2018 0.333
—EZN\FtHATAHH +tA+HAZE
T N\#+ATHEA
900,000 = = = 900,000 15 July 2008 15 JuI 2013 to 14 July 2018 0.333
“ET)/\FtATAH +A+HAZE
o= —)\itﬂ +HA
600,000 = = = 600,000 31 0c Ober 2008 31 October 2009 to 0.160
—ZEZ)\FtH 30 October 2018
:$$h¢+ﬂ +—R=ZE
—N\E+A=1H
900,000 = = = 900,000 31 October 2008 31 October 2011 to 0.160
—EEN\FETA= 30 October 2018
—T——F+A=t—HE
—E-N\E+A=TH

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2R EMAR AR

55



56

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERWMEE

Share option scheme (continued)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

(continued)

Number of share options

BREE (|
TEREBFARRBHARTERBREZZS : ()

BRESE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise price
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period of share
of participants 2010 the year the year the year 2011 share options of share options options
(note a) (note b)
N-EB-—%F R=-B——% B BRE
SHEATHEHER tH—H FREH FRITE FRZHK AA=t+AH (MTH'H}; BRETES E%Hﬂ%mﬁfj
J7ta b
HK$
er share
RBE T
Other employees Hfti{g &
In zja:cE;gregate 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 31 October 2008 31 October 2013 to 0.160
P —ZEENE+HA=+—H 30 October 2018
_T——¢+ﬂ +—R=Z
—NE+A= +E
480,000 - - - 480,000 4 February 2010 4 February 2011 to 0.456
—Z-TF-HWA 3 February 2020
—E-TE-f=H
720,000 - - - 720,000 4 Februar 2010 4 February 2012 to 0.456
-z %1 3 February 2020
“E——F-AWAZE
“E-EF-A=H
1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 4 February 2010 4 February 2013 to 0.456
—E-TF-HmMmA 3 February 2020
—T-T5-f=H
= 14,060,000 = = 14,060,000 5 July 2010 (noig e) 0.503
—E—TFtHAA (Pt 5Ee)
= 992,000 = = 992,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 0.780
—E-TE+H+ZH 11 October 2020
“E——%+A+=HE
—E-EE+AT—H
= 648,000 = = 648,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2012 to 0.780
—T-TE+H+ZH 11 October 2020
“EZ—_Et+AT-HE
—E-EE+AT—H
= 1,920,000 = = 1,920,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 0.780
—E-TE+H+ZH 11 October 2020
“E—=f+A+=HE
—E-EE+AT—H
= 1,400,000 = = 1,400,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 0.780
—E-TE+H+ZH 11 October 2020
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EERHMES
Share option scheme (continued) BBIRERE (E)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TREEFARRBBARITEEREZZS : (B)
(continued)
Number of share options
BREZA
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise price
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period of share
of participants 2010 the year the year the year 2011 share options of share options options
(note a) (note b)
R-Z-ZF R-B——F RERE
SEATHEGER tA—H FRARH FRTE FREK AA=1+H =) BRETES BRETEE
(PffiEa) (PFit3Eb)
HK$
per share
GRE®ET
Other employees Hfti{E &
In aggregate - 254,000 - - 254,000 12 October 2010 (note f) 0.780
& i W = (BF=Ef)
- 216,000 - - 216,000 3 January 2011 3 January 2012 to 0.922
—E——%—H=H 2 January 2021
—T——f—-HA=HZ%
“E-—%—A—H
- 324,000 - - 324,000 3 January 2011 3 January 2013 to 0.922
—E——F—H=H 2 January 2021
—ZT—=F—H=HZE
—E-—%—HAZH
- 540,000 - - 540,000 3 January 2011 3 January 2014 to 0.922
—Z——%—HA=H 2 January 2021
—E-ME-HA=HZF
—E-_—%—HFZH
- 225,000 - - 225,000 3 January 2011 (note g) 0.922
—T——%—-H=H (FizEg)
- 80,000 - - 80,000 3 May 2011 (note h) 0.894
—Z——FhA=H (Bt 5ER)
40,600,000 20,659,000 (12,260,000) (600,000) 48,399,000

57,800,000 45,419,000 (17,260,000) (7,400,000) 78,559,000
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Share option scheme (continued)
Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year:

(a)

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

Ms. CHAN So Kuen resigned as deputy chairman, chief executive officer and executive director of the
Company on 1 October 2010. All unexercised share options held by her forfeited on 1 January 2011 in
accordance with the provisions of the Scheme.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 4 July 2011, 1,376,000 share options were granted to
other employees with an exercise price of HK$0.880 per share in respect of their services to the Group in
the forthcoming years. Vesting of these share options is subject to certain conditions, with details of which
are disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the
audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020. Vesting of
the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including
but not limited to achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share
options or any portion thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the
audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 11 October 2020. Vesting
of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including
but not limited to achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share
options or any portion thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.
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BREE (|
FRREARITER ISR T

(a)

(b)

(d)

BREARPAERE AR ERTESRREMB AL -

PRI 17 68 AT RIS SRR SR B (T ALAR + S 2 R 2 B AL
BBT TR -

REBLLER-B—BF T A—AREARADLR  TRER
RHTEE - TRAHE 2 A AT ERRED Rt 82 X
R A—RRMK-

RI|BERRE R-ZT——FLANA - AEBEEMESHARER
ARRFERAEERMERE T ER,376,0000) BERE - 1TERERES
BB #0.8807T - R EBIREN TR BX BB TIRIFAMARR - FHERE
BRI A3V

ZEBREERTIEAEEBE T =F "A=TBILFEZLE
BEREBENAMREZNEXAMGTE 22 _TFLAMA -
BERENBBXERNARANKERBE_T—=FA=1H
=8/ AEEZN=F5EEB R (BRETRRERKER
B MBEREERBERR) FHRMEBRR - WAREERBH=F5H
BiE - HEBREREE MO /ERY -

ZEBBRESBRTEAEEHEE S —=FA=THLEFEZ
REZEENMMREZNEEARGTR E-F_FF T A+~
B-BRENBBIENARANKERBE-_ZT—=FA=1
BIE=F8f A&EEZI=F5£E8F(BFRETRNEZRB
BF UHBREEXRRBER FHRARR -HAREEXKEH=F5%
1% - HEERE R AR O &R -



Share option scheme (continued)
Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year: (continued)

(9)

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the
audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2021. Vesting
of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including
but not limited to achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share
options or any portion thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the
audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 2 May 2021. Vesting of
the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including
but not limited to achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share
options or any portion thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the exercise dates of the
share options was HK$0.904 per share. The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately before
the dates on which the options were granted on 5 July 2010, 12 October 2010, 3 January 2011 and 3
May 2011 were HK$0.495 per share, HK$0.760 per share, HK$0.940 per share and HK$0.880 per share,
respectively.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERWMEE

BREE (&)
FRAFEARITEBIRMETRME : (&)

(9)

(h)

ZEBREFETIEAEEEE S =FA=THILFEZE
EREEAMREZNEXAFGTE E-F_—F—A=R-
BRENEBXENARANKREBE_T—=FXA=1H
=R AEEE =F5EB F (BRETRNEZREH
R MBEREERRBR) FHRERR - MAEEXAR=FKH
B1R - AR MBSO S &R -

ZEBREFETEAEEEE S —=FA=THILFEZE
BERRENMMRERNEERARGTE 2T _—FAA_R-
BRENEBXENARANKREBE T —=FA=1H
=8/ AEEE =FKEB R (BRETRNEZREH
R MHEREERRBR) FHRERR - MWAEERFR=-F5H
1% HEBRES E AR OB SR -

RA RN BB RAETE B AT NEF R E B TREE
0.9047T - AR AIRMREEEREEC - —ZTF+LARA - =F
—ZF+A+-B - —E——F—AZAK-_ZT——FRAZAK
o B HART 2 W B 5 Bl A E RS 0.4957T - &AE%0.7607T
% 75 #0.9407T & 2 B #0.8807T ©
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Share option scheme (continued)
The directors have estimated the values of the share options granted during the year, calculated using the
trinomial option pricing model as at the date of grant of the options:

Number of options Theoretical value

granted during the year of share options

BREE (|
EERA-AAREEREAGHFACREBRERNRLBHZE
& :

FREBHBRERA BREEHREE
HK$'000
Grantees BT T AEEA
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess 4,000,000 1,605 e/t
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 15,650,000 6,131 BEELE
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul 3,310,000 1,278 PREFREAE
Ms. CHAN So Kuen (resigned on 1 October 2010) 1,800,000 473 BREEXT (RZE—ZTF+A—HET)
Other employees 20,659,000 6,484 ==
45,419,000 15,971

The trinomial model is a generally accepted method of valuing options, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The significant assumptions used in the calculation of the
values of the share options were the risk-free interest rate, expected life of options, expected volatility and
expected dividend. The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is
not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
The measurement dates used in the valuation calculations were the dates on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the trinomial model are subject to certain fundamental limitations,
due to the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of the expected future

performance input to the model, and certain inherent limitations of the model itself.

The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change to the
variables used may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.
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Directors’ interests in contracts
No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and underlying shares

At 30 June 2011, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital and share options of the
Company were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERWMEE

EERENP 2R
AEEHREEEAAAREAANBANETMEAEELBEEA
pEAFMANTEEREEEE AN -

FERRRRORABEKG 2
W_B——FEXA=TH AR TERES KRGO HI6HFEZ
B RMET - THIALRARAEBATRA R B 5%k
A LR -

Long positions: FE -
Percentage of
Number of ordinary Number of share the Company’s
Name Capacity and nature of interest shares held options held issued shares
EAEQT BT
®A B RESME FisERERYE FisBRES B RGOBEDH
Mr. LAW Ka Sing Directly beneficially owned
BRESLLE ERERER 1,093,091,098 - 67.51
Family interest
ENAYF - 4,000,000 0.25
Total
R 1,093,091,098 4,000,000 67.76

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2011, no person, other than the directors of the Company, whose
interests are also set out in the section “Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares” above, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Sufficiency of public float
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

BEXPEEEREEENRO RBBRN 2 Ea ] —SHmEARQH

Bz ROT——FXAZ+TH  BEAIRARAZRHK
BB T - BERBRES R B IRHIF336{F T AR 2t 30X
Ao

RBREREZEHMN

REBEARRAINGE 2 AREHNRREEANE - RARSEH
TRAOFBEARRAD BEITRAAEHI25% o

CRBA
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Purchase, redemption or sale of listed securities of the Company
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Further details of the transactions are included in note 36 to the
financial statements.

Purchase of garments

On 11 May 2009, the Group renewed a purchase agreement with a subsidiary of Laws International Group
Limited (“Laws International”), Sky Dragon International Industrial Limited (the “Purchase Agreement”) which
was effective from 1 July 2009 to 30 June 2012 for purchases of garments from Laws International and its
subsidiaries. Certain directors of Laws International, who have beneficial equity interests therein, are relatives
of Mr. LAW Ka Sing, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess, a director of the
Company. According to the Purchase Agreement, the annual values of the purchases of garments from Laws
International and its subsidiaries by the Group for the year ended 30 June 2011 and for the year ending 30
June 2012 will not exceed HK$414,000,000 and HK$497,000,000, respectively. The prices of the products are
to be determined by reference to the prevailing market prices.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in relation to the purchases of garments set out above and have confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available from
independent suppliers; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant Purchase Agreement and on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole. The independent
non-executive directors of the Company have further confirmed that the values of purchases of garments
from Laws International and its subsidiaries by the Group for the year ended 30 June 2011 did not exceed
HK$414,000,000.
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Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions (continued)

Purchase of garments (continued)

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice
Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been
provided by the Company to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Auditors
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
TSIN Man Kuen Bess
Chairman

Hong Kong
21 September 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
B ZHERE

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

To the shareholders of Bossini International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bossini International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 66 to 171, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 30 June 2011, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditors’ responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

21 September 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEREWER

VYear ended 30 June 2011 HE=ZT——FA=+HILFE

Notes 2011 2010

in HK$ thousand Bt s —E——-F —T-EF BT T

REVENUE 5 2,641,967 2,306,260 =

Cost of sales (1,287,740) (1,116,115) HE R K

GROSS PROFIT 1,354,227 1,190,145 EF

Other income 5 21,213 11,497 =N

Selling and distribution costs (891,841) (790,677) HE RDHKA

Administrative expenses (284,199) (254,126) THHAX

Other operating expenses (31,833) (42,418) Hi&ERY

PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 167,567 114,421 EEEKER

Finance costs 6 (7,548) (4,939) B E AR

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 160,019 109,482 BRI R

Income tax expense 10 (29,906) (19,031) FBHAY

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE RATHEEAENL
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 11 130,113 90,451 R R F

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hth2mEUE (&8)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 309 (1,947) MEBNEBrERER
Deferred tax relating to revaluation of EfAELIHMRETFTY

leasehold land and buildings 29 - 95 BRI

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR FREMEZEYRE(BE)
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 309 (1,852) HkRHE

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR KA EEAELER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 130,422 88,599 2HEK A

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ARRAEBERBEEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13 EhERER
Basic HK 8.07 centsi&{ll HK 5.66 centsia Il LN
Diluted HK 7.97 centsi&fill  HK 5.64 centsi& Il g

Details of the dividends paid and proposed for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.
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30June 2011 ==&

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
IR T

——FRA=+H

Notes 2011 2010
in HK$ thousand Bt 5E —ZE——F T -TF BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment 14 147,634 129,248 L E Yy S
Investment properties 15 32,686 34,454 WEMHE
Trademark 16 1,164 1,164 [ELE
Deferred tax assets 29 1,101 1,637 EETIEE E
Deposits paid 20 74,759 63,989 mANE &
Total non-current assets 257,344 230,492 ERBEELRE
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 18 412,166 300,480 A=
Debtors 19 71,248 59,778 JE W BR R
Bills receivable 7,033 11,283 i e
Deposits paid 20 36,510 35,538 [EANE &
Prepayments and other receivables 21 75,992 52,338 T8 A< NI B EAh FE W BR 18
Structured deposit 25 15,858 15,440 ERIET
Derivative financial instruments 26 = 695 EemIA
Tax recoverable = 582 AJ U 1B 7 3K
Pledged bank deposits 22 1,701 1,523 BEIPRITER
Cash and cash equivalents 22 458,042 461,068 RekRE&FEBEER
Total current assets 1,078,550 938,725 MEEEMLE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Fa BN &

30June 2011 —ZT——FXA=+H

Notes 2011 2010
in HK$ thousand B 5 —E——F —T—TF BT
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade creditors, other payables and accruals 23 292,369 271,284 FEATRRER « Ho i FE < 3RIB R FE 5T AR IR
Bills payable 46,107 35,034 FE %
Tax payable 53,505 43,117 JE S5 35 5K
Due to related companies 24 12,734 21,458 JERTEE R RIFKIA
Derivative financial instruments 26 1,241 256 ?ﬁi@%ﬂiﬂ
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 27 127,484 60,655 FFEIRITER
Provision 28 2,747 3,643 Bt
Total current liabilities 536,187 435,447 nEaEEeE
NET CURRENT ASSETS 542,363 503,278 REEEFE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 799,707 733,770 RABEEREEHAE
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities 29 1,893 1,997 LR IEA G
Other payable 23 380 - H fth fE T3R8

2,273 1,997

Net assets 797,434 731,773 BEFHAE
EQUITY =
Issued capital 30 161,918 160,192 BEBITRA
Reserves 32 635,516 571,581 fE
Total equity 797,434 731,773 HEBE
Details of the dividends paid and proposed for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements. BARFEE N REIRRE ZFIER I BRI 124558 -
MAK Tak Cheong Edmund ZZ& CHAN Cheuk Him Paul BR &5
Director % Director %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 30 June 2011 HE-ZT——F NA=+HILFE

Share Share Capital Contributed Asset Exchange Reserve
Issued premium option reserve surplus revaluation fluctuation funds Retained Total
Notes capital account reserve (note a) (note b) reserve reserve (note ¢) profits equity
in HK$ thousand 28T & 5 Bk EAREE BAER BE SME R B REES
BT T fid&E (&S i B Bk 4] GEL) (Bt 7ED) EffEE i (Bft 5c) RE A EmAE
At 1 July 2010
RZZE—ZTF+H—H 160,192 6,674 11,557 (4,987) 90,258 9,395 21,077 1,810 435,797 731,773
Profit for the year
RE 5 A - - - - - - - - 130,113 130,113
Other comprehensive income for the year:
AEEHMPEEE :
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations
MEBIEBCEREZR - - - - - - 309 - - 309
Total comprehensive income for the year
FREERSRE - - - - - - 309 - 130,113 130,422
Final 2010 dividend declared
BEER-Z—ZFRAKE - - - - - - - - (37,041) (37,041)
Special 2010 dividend declared
BEER-Z-ZFHHKRE - - - - - - - - (4,832) (4,832
Interim 2011 dividend
T —FhHKRE 12 - - - - - - - - (35583) (35,583)
Exercise of share options
1TE R A 30 1,726 10,500 (4,354) - - - - - - 7,872
Equity-settled share option arrangements
BEEEBRELH 31 - - 4,823 - - - - - - 4,823
At 30 June 2011
RZZE——FA=7H 161,918 17,174* 12,026* (4,987)* 90,258* 9,395* 21,386* 1,810* 488,454** 797,434
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARREDRE
Year ended 30 June 2011 HE-—T——FA=1THIFE

Share Share Capital ~ Contributed Asset Exchange Reserve
Issued premium option reserve surplus  revaluation  fluctuation funds Retained Total
Notes capital account reserve (note a) (note b) reserve reserve (note ¢) profits equity
in HK$ thousand BT & 5 s N AR BE N HEESR
BT Wt [F&N wER s GEL)) (Bt 5ED) EfffE s (Bt 5EC) RE & R iaE
At 1 July 2009
RZZZEAF+A—H 159,392 5,506 9,577 (4,987) 90,258 9,876 23,024 1,798 378,316 672,760
Profit for the year
REZHM - - - - - - - - 90,451 90,451

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year:
AEFEEMEENE (BE) :
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations
MEBIEB ERZR - = = = = = (1,947) - = (1,947)
Deferred tax relating to revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings
EfHEELMREFRILEN A - - - - - 95 - - - 95

Total comprehensive income for the year

FAREKGEHE - - - - - 95 (1,947) - 90,451 88,599
Realisation on depreciation

RITERZR - - - - - (576) - - 576 -
Final 2009 dividend declared

BERZZTZNFERPKRE - - - - - - - - (15939) (15,939
Interim 2010 dividend

—Z-TFERHYRE 12 - - - - - - - - (17,595)  (17,595)
Appropriation to reserve funds

DEZEHEES - - - - - - - 12 (12) -
Exercise of share options

1L R 30 800 1,168 (568) - - - - - - 1,400
Equity-settled share option arrangements

BanitBERERH 31 - - 2,548 - - - - - - 2,548

At 30 June 2010
RZE—ZTFA=+H 160,192 6,674* 11,557* (4,987)*  90,258* 9,395* 21,077* 1,810*  435,797** 731,773
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*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$635,516,000 (2010: HK$571,581,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

#  The retained profits comprise the proposed final dividend of HK$49,061,000 (2010: HK$36,844,000) and proposed
special dividend of HK$19,430,000 (2010: HK$4,806,000) for the year.

Notes:

(@) The capital reserve of the Group represents goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years.

(b) The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value of the share capital issued
by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and the share premium account of the subsidiaries acquired

pursuant to the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1993.

() In accordance with the financial regulations applicable in mainland China, a portion of the profit of a subsidiary in
mainland China has been transferred to the reserve funds which are restricted as to use.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

()

o A 47 3£ % =
mEERZEHRE
Year ended 30 June 2011 HE—Z——FA=1tHILEE

W EFHERBERSIINGE M BMARRRAZEE B 635,516,000 (=
T —F4F : B#E571,581,0007T) °

REEMNEB 2 ARFE IR AR S8 849,061,000 (ZF—FF : 8

#36,844,0007T) & K 45 5l A% B & #19,430,000 (= — T F : B
4,806,0007T) °

AEBZEAFERBEFEUBHBARMELZHE -

REEZBANBBARRRCHETRAZEBEREARRBRON-NWNA=FL
MR ESRESHEMRE ZMB AR 2 BRARBD G ERAE I ZH -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SERERER
Year ended 30 June 2011 HE-—T——FXA=+HIFE

Notes 2011 2010
in HK$ thousand Bz —E——F —T-TF BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEXBZRERE
Profit before tax 160,019 109,482 B 50 B A
Adjustments for: RE
Finance costs 6 7,548 4,939 B & R A
Interest income 5 (3,202) (1,919) MEUA
Provision for inventories 7 11,096 7,136 GFERE
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, & MEE - BE R
plant and equipment 7 1,436 2,241 JHB 2 A
Fair value losses, net on derivative financial PTESMTAZ AV EFEE
instruments — transactions not qualifying as hedges 7 4,202 990 — T REEHPFENRZ S
Fair value loss/(gain) on a structured deposit 7 (433) 139 EBEERZ AFEER (W)
Depreciation 7 75,734 73,427 e
Equity-settled share option expense 7 4,823 2,548 o EEERERY
Write-back of provision 7 (1,313) (3,065) iR dEl
Impairment of debtors 7 295 490 JE WS BR FORU(E
260,205 196,408
Increase in inventories (128,666) (30,742) FEE
Increase in debtors (13,273) (6,096) JIE W AR SR8 A0
Decrease/(increase) in bills receivable 4,250 (1,526) FEUR =R A (18 0)
Increase in deposits paid (13,006) (3,504) B iR
Increase in prepayments and other receivables (24,729) (9,736) TE A SR I8 N HL b FE Y BR T 3% A
Increase in trade creditors, other payables and accruals 26,308 88,867 FEATRR R~ Eo i FE < RRIB I e 5t AR TE 35 0
Increase in bills payable 11,073 30,197 JE T AR AN
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to related companies (8,724) 12,252 FERTREIB AR Z AL I, CRid)
Decrease in derivative financial instruments (2,522) (4,694) THES R T AR
Cash generated from operations 110,916 271,426 EEERBGMEZRE
Interest paid (7,548) (4,939) ERFE
Hong Kong profits tax paid (16,633) (23,980) ENBEAEREH
Overseas taxes paid (2,097) (784) EARg SN IR
Net cash flows from operating activities 84,638 241,723 EBEBCMBReREFHE

ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 3%



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HERERER

Year ended 30 June 2011 HE-T——FXA=THILFE

Notes 2011 2010
in HK$ thousand P& —E-—-fF —T-EF BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFH2HRERE
Interest received 3,202 1,919 EYFE
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment 14 (89,740) (60,072) BE ﬁ%% WE RFEEE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant LEWE - Jﬁ’i%& SEIE R
and equipment 263 968 P15 3Kk T
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged bank deposits with 5 Hﬂ? FNEAEEA=EA
original maturity of more than three months ZEERRITER
when acquired 96,000 (60,000) ()
Increase in a structured deposit - (15,579) 4 1 TE R N
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities 9,725 (132,764) BREZB B/ () BeREFE
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHRERE
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of EATE AR T TS 2
share options 30 7,872 1,400 P15 3/ 38
Dividends paid (77,456) (33,534) BEARE
New bank loans 380,038 268,462 R IRIT E N
Repayment of bank loans (316,096) (286,421) EEBRITER
Net cash flows used in financing activities (5.642) (50,093) MEEE TR REFHAE
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 88,721 58,866 ReRASEMEER 2FEM
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 366,591 306,260 FUzHRekReEEIER
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 4,431 1,465 INERMEREY o B - FE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 459,743 366,591 FRZEESRRESEEEH
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH ReRBELEEER
EQUIVALENTS REER D AT
Cash and bank balances 22 275,809 364,834 e MIRTTHERR
Non-pledged bank deposits with original maturity BENREINHAINR=ZEAZ
of less than three months when acquired 22 182,233 234 E i fﬁfﬂ_m
Pledged bank deposits with original maturity NENREIHAIR=Z(EA
of less than three months when acquired 22 1,701 1,523 BEMRITER
459,743 366,591
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FIEIRR TR

30 June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

Notes 2011 2010
in HK$ thousand P 5 —T——F —E—TF BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries 17 143,162 143,162 R B AR 21 E
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries 17 276,979 236,333 JRE AT P /B8 12 R 3R
Prepayments 21 182 187 Tart R IE
Tax recoverable - 582 AT Y Bl 7K
Cash and cash equivalents 22 400 783 RekRE&FEBHIER
Total current assets 277,561 237,885 MENEERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEE
Other payables and accruals 23 2,726 2,928 E At JE < F0IE M JE T AR IA
Tax payable 408 - JE TR

3,134 2,928

NET CURRENT ASSETS 274,427 234,957 REEEFE
Net assets 417,589 378,119 BEFE
EQUITY =
Issued capital 30 161,918 160,192 BETRA
Reserves 32 255,671 217,927 ]
Total equity 417,589 378,119 EmAE
Details of the dividends paid and proposed for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements. HEANEED REBRERE Y BRI EREWITI2HE -
MAK Tak Cheong Edmund & & CHAN Cheuk Him Paul R 5
Director % Director Z%
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2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Bossini International Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda. Its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in investment holding and the retailing, distribution
and wholesaling of garments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for derivative financial instruments and a structured deposit, which have been
measured at fair value, and investment properties as further explained in note 2.4 below. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$ ") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

Basis of consolidation from 1 July 2010

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2011. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends
are eliminated on consolidation in full.

2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cupy E N

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

ARER

EMERREEERARIREREAMEALZAERAR « KA A
Z M= A Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda ° AR AIRMEB B E R ZMBR AR ([BEFT]) £ o

AEBRAFEIZREREEBMKKETE - 0 R BHEK -

mREEXE
ZEVBHRRDEREB GRS ((BEEHMAG ) B 2E
B BERER ([FEMBERER)) (BIEMBEREEVMBERE
Al FAEAERA(EFEST L] ki)  BEEBERMAZE
SRAIREE R RIGRD 2 WEREMREL L HIRIBE LKA TR
ERE ETTE SR T AERGEBIETETARFERE AR T XXM
A2 AFTRFIL 2 AR B MERRID - R FEMBMEABT (BT FHE
BREFRIZIRASN - FREBESNBEEE T IFE -

REREEE

H_E—FF+ A HEZGEEKEZE
FEVBRREBEARTALEANBAR (AR AKEDBE_F
——FRAZTHLEFEZHBHRR - WB AR 2 BHMKRTIRE
ARFMER 2 RERERA - R A BRBEH - EFAEFELZ
HESHBREHBELRABRUMEZER 2 - MBARIREAD 5
BERH (BAKEESZGEZB) ERastE - B2 Lilties)
BEIEZBRIE - AEBAZSARBZABEHES XHREEANE
RAERGMEEZ RERBR LIRS SERGEREB2HY
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr BB

30June 2011 —ZT——FXA=+H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 REEXE (F)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Basis of consolidation from 1 July 2010 (continued)

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit
balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate.

Basis of consolidation prior to 1 July 2010
Certain of the above-mentioned requirements have been applied on a prospective basis. The following
differences, however, are carried forward in certain instances from the previous basis of consolidation:

e Losses incurred by the Group were attributed to the non-controlling interest until the balance was
reduced to nil. Any further excess losses were attributable to the parent, unless the non-controlling
interest had a binding obligation to cover these. Losses prior to 1 July 2010 were not reallocated
between non-controlling interest and the parent shareholders.

e Upon loss of control, the Group accounted for the investment retained at its proportionate share of

net asset value at the date control was lost. The carrying amount of such investment at 1 July 2010
has not been restated.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s

financial statements.

HKAS 32 Amendment

HKFRS 1 Amendment

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

HK Interpretation 4
Amendment
HK Interpretation 5

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010

Amendment to HKAS 32 — Financial Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues

Amendment to HKFRS 1 — First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards — Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosure for First-time Adopters

Amendments to HKFRS 1 — First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards — Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Share-based Payment — Group Cash-
settled Share-based Payment Transactions

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

Amendment to HK Interpretation 4 — Leases — Determination of
the Length of Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong Land Leases

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in May 2009

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in May 2010

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Lupr 2 e

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

22 B2 BB RKE

AEBEERANFERE M BHRERE KA T IR MHRRETE LM

BIERER -

B G ERIFE32H
(B{E5T)
BRAMBERENSE1HR

(&)

BREMBERER SR

(BT)

B 75 B 5 R SR 2E R 5255
(l1E3T)

&5 (ERTBERRE
ZEY)-REE19%R

BB REEMSR (KE)

BEEREEST

“TTNFERUBER
EAlz &

—E-TEERMBER
EAZHE

ER e ERENR 2B —2H LA
EI-HRZ A

ERMBERENE VR - ENFHEE
HHERER - EARRBER TN FER
BRETRRBELEEHZ BRAE

ERMBERENS VR 2B -EARNZE
HHEGER - BENEFNEZFIH 2

ERMBERERR2R BT LUK
HE-EER L BERO AL
URETAAHZBARE

BERESR B - HE-ETTELHHE

ZHBHHIR
B B#HZZ 25— EXN G AR ZE K
EBEGH L EHEHZ 5K

HR-_ZTNFAARM S ABEMBIER
B/ Z BT

HR-Z-THEAARMIZEBERUBER
R Z B85

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2R EMAR AR

77

J



78

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr BB

30June 2011 —ZT——FXA=+H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of amendments to HKAS 7 included in
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009, the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as follows:

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 issued in May 2009 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. There are
separate transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption of some of the amendments results
in changes in accounting policies, none of these amendments has had a significant financial impact on the
Group. Details of the key amendment most applicable to the Group are as follows:

e HKAS 7 — Statement of Cash Flows: Requires that only expenditures that result in a recognised asset
in the statement of financial position can be classified as a cash flow from investing activities.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements *

HKAS 12 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 12 — Income Taxes — Deferred Tax:
Recovery of Underlying Assets 3

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits >

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements °

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures °
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 23 CEMEMKRENM2E B EEREL (E)
(continued)

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 — First-time Adoption of Hong Kong BENBERER S 15 (LET) AR BERENE IR 2BIT-FX
Financial Reporting Standards — Severe Hyperinflation and BB B BERER - B E S AR
Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters ? Rt B RENZ 55 ELE BE?

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: BEMBERER ST (KET) BENBERENETR 2B —2#
Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets 2 TR RE-2HEEZER?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ° BEMBERER LN EHIAS

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements BEMBERERE105 BRI BHE S

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 5 BB BERENFE1SR Wa L HE S

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities ° BENISERERNE125 BEREMERLZ B ®

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement ° BEAVBERENE13R AR Yod-1 -

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 — Prepayments of a Minimum 5% (AR KERREZES) % (BBusERREZES) 2B

Amendments Funding Requirement —ZEE14% (BET) BVR B - FENREEZZ
Zx0

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 which sets out amendments BT A EER]  BASMAEEE M ffﬁ?ﬁgﬁ‘fﬂﬂfﬁﬁ

to a number of HKFRSs primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. The Alz2%Z  AREHIEZIEEE Eﬁﬁ[#&ﬁ?ﬁm’ﬁtﬂ WEsl T8

amendments to HKAS 1, HKAS 34, HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 are effective for annual periods EMER—BUIEXRBERR  c HESERE 15 FES ,ﬁr%ﬁé

beginning on or after 1 January 2011 although there are separate transitional provisions for each standard. BIZE345% - BAEMBIERERE 15 - BAMBERENEIRRE

B(ERMBEREEZES) BB B3R BTN T ——F—
A—Hsiz BBz FEHBER  ESRENE 8RB BEIEK

37 o

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 T RZE——F A BRzERRZFEHRER

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011 2 RIE——F+HA-BRERRZFEHRER

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012 3 RIE—ZF-A BRI ZERRZFEHRER

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012 ¢ O RZTZHFLA-RARZEMBZFEHABRAER

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 S ORZE—=F-A—HAszERBRZFEHRER

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon REBE FEERERZENRO RSB BMBEREL 2
initial application. So far, the Group considers that except for the adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised), HKAS Z -BZAAAL  AEERR  BREMATESHERNE 1R (KE
12 Amendments, HKAS 19 (2011), HKAS 27 (2011), HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKFRS 13, these ) BA G ERE 129 (KB - EAGTERIE195 (=
new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group'’s results of operations and —— %) BB ENE2R (ZT——F) - FEMBERERD
financial position. Fo5% -  BERYBERERF109% - BBV BERERE1295 RE

}%ﬁﬁﬁﬁi&iﬁﬁu%B?ﬁﬁl\ " %M KA ISR BB B TS HE SRAER
" EUHAEBZRERERWBRRNENERNZE -
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly,
so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations from 1 July 2010

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date through profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an
asset or liability is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it shall not be remeasured
until it is finally settled within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Business combinations from 1 July 2010 (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 30 June.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included
in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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In comparison to the above-mentioned requirements which were applied on a prospective basis, the
following differences applied to business combinations prior to 1 July 2010:

Business combinations were accounted for using the purchase method. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition formed part of the acquisition costs. The non-controlling interest was
measured at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for as separate steps. Any additional acquired
share of interest did not affect previously recognised goodwill.

When the Group acquired a business, embedded derivatives separated from the host contract by the
acquiree were not reassessed on acquisition unless the business combination resulted in a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modified the cash flows that otherwise would have been required
under the contract.

Contingent consideration was recognised if, and only if, the Group had a present obligation, the economic
outflow was more likely than not and a reliable estimate was determinable. Subsequent adjustments to
the contingent consideration were recognised as part of goodwill.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or
is under common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in
(d) or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

The asset revaluation reserve arising from the revaluation of property, plant and equipment is realised
and transferred directly to retained profits on a systematic basis, as the corresponding asset is used by the
Group. The amount realised is the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of the asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cover an impairment loss, on an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained profits is made for
the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the
asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost or valuation of each item of
property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:
Land and buildings 2% to 4% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter

9% to 25%
15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Motor vehicles 15% to 33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost or valuation
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least
at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBRBE (&)

86

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. The Group has adopted the cost model under HKAS
40 to account for its investment properties and such properties are stated at cost less depreciation and any
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of investment properties to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The annual depreciation rate used for this purpose is 3%.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in profit or loss
in the year of the retirement or disposal.

When a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change in use. As the Group uses the cost model for
investment property, transfers between owner-occupied property and investment property do not change
the carrying amount of the property transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for
measurement or disclosure purposes.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to profit
or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, and loans and receivables, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, debtors, bills and
other receivables, deposits paid, a structured deposit and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. These net fair value changes
do not include any interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable
future significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
The reclassification from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial investments or held-to-maturity investments depends on the nature of the
assets. This evaluation does not affect any financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
using the fair value option at designation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in profit
or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a “pass-
through” arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group'’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets cRMEERME
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a AEERSREPRIEEEFETEEBER T —Ha—He®mE
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is EEHRFBE - —EHl—HEREEEREREERBETEENS

deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because
of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade creditors, bills and other payables, certain accruals, amounts
due to related companies, derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
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The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees

or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets is determined by reference to
guoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs. For financial instruments where there is no active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques include using
recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument
which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except
for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis and includes all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present value at
the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
Ccosts.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or
loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current

tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 3%

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBRBE (&)
Income tax (continued) Frie% ()

EERBREENRAMAAMBEREEZSR BB RPARBAEE
RAREABIEEE T AR - MR 88 IR B2 ER TR A A A
AHRERLEER SEAPDARBEELADABEBER
MR-

s RIETHBEENANETHEEBREH IR ZHNIER
RHZEERBBEMELEZAMRERIEEZE  BTREEF
N SRR M BB 1E - I

e HMERNMBARKREBMIAMREKMEERANS - BEEHNA
B EEETA ] B TE AT 5% SR [0 A 1 22 2R N B A JE AR B A
BB E R ZRRE - 77 THER

BEEHBEE 2 EEESNSEREHREN  WREE B4
BRABRERTENABBEEHANELERIAEEZKF - K
BRZECHAEEDRERENREM - ANAEACHARE
RBENABHEZHBH A NELERIBEERR © TIARER -

EEHBEERBBENRERSHANCERREL LEEHEHIK
BEBERZBR (REBED) - ZARERRAEZRABRE

EERZIMEH -

IR AIORITRRN - REFAMBIREEREAHBARE -
ZBERIFS R A -G BB L E RS - ARERREER
EIETRIABE T LA 3H



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms; and

(d) royalty income, on a time proportion basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company’s memorandum,
articles of association and bye-laws grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TEETHERME (&)

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (”equity-settled transactions”).

In situations where equity instruments are issued and some or all of the goods or services received by the
Group as consideration cannot be specifically identified, the unidentifiable goods or services are measured
as the difference between the fair value of the share-based payment and the fair value of any identifiable
goods or services received at the grant date.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair values are determined using
appropriate option pricing models, further details of which are given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group'’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and
any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled transaction awards are
treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their employment contracts on a calendar
year basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the reporting
period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An
accrual is made at the end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned
during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operates two pension schemes in Hong Kong, namely the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme as defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the ""ORSO
Scheme”), for all of its employees in Hong Kong.

Under the MPF Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ relevant income with a maximum monthly
contribution of HK$1,000 per employee are made by each of the employer and the employees. The
employer contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)
Under the ORSO Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ basic salaries are made by the employer
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the ORSO Scheme.
The rates of contributions made by the employees are either 0% or 5% of the salary of each employee
at the discretion of the employee. When an employee leaves the ORSO Scheme prior to his/her interest in
the Group's employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group may be
reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited contributions.

The assets of the MPF and ORSO Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Singapore participate in a Central Provident Fund Scheme, which is a
contribution plan established by the Central Provident Fund Board in Singapore.

The Group operates two pension schemes in Taiwan under the Labour Standards Law (the "’Old Scheme'’)
and under the Labour Pension Act which became effective on 1 July 2005 (the “"New Scheme’’). Under the
Old Scheme, the Taiwan Branch of one of the Company’s subsidiaries makes regular contributions to the
Old Scheme to meet its employees’ retirement and termination benefits. Currently, the contributions have
been approved to be made at 2% of the employees’ total salaries. The fund is administered by a committee
and is deposited in the committee’s name with a government approved financial institution, Central Trust
of China, which acts as the trustee. Under the New Scheme, the Taiwan Branch and a Taiwan subsidiary
contribute each month 6% of the salaries of the employees who choose to participate in the New Scheme,
and deposit these amounts into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance.

The Company’s subsidiary in Malaysia participates in a state pension scheme, the Employees Provident
Fund, and contributions are based on 12% of the employees’ gross salaries.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 3%

24 TESTBERBE (&)

EEEF (&)

RIKEE 2 (&)

ERERAFET BIREERFS %MK - WARBBE
BRAFTEINATE - HFNEHANKERRANEG - MERRIFER
BREFE0%HE%ZLLEHK - EREENSAEEREIZZHH
HBTR B R R NG S - AERE R AR ER 2 BERRE R L&
2 K -

BRETA B RBERNFEZEE  BEXAKBEZEENH LA
VERZETHEA -

AEERPEAREZEZMEARNERBAS MBI MBAR
M2 HPREARRERE c REMBARARETIERAZETAS
Lo Rz o RAR KRR ET BB R » RIBZ T RRIKREFT BV R
T HERRENREREATE -

RRBEFMIMEZ MBRR2ERTESAE - L — BRI LD

BE BRI ZHHEE

KEBERBEDRIRELBEEL ([E518) MR ZTTRF LA
—H &%z Labour Pension Act ([ #7528 ]) 48 & M ERAKEF TS -
RIEEFE AR BARZEES A EHAEFEIRNT &
HESREEAIEEEN R CELAEZHABAES AT
M22% - ZEcH—EARESER  WAZZESRETHR —
FERESEFEAZEATR A B 51 Central Trust of China © R#R
Fatdlc aELRARIREENBATE A BEENE 2 EERE
EH N2 6% E - W77 B Bureau of Labour Insurance Z f& AR K
BREMA -

RATREREE 2B A28 —EBEKREARE SEmployees
Provident Fund * 1% {8 B 425 & 2 12% 3K »



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interests and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.

Loyalty programme
The Group operates a loyalty programme which allows customers to accumulate points when they
purchase products from the Group.

The consideration received is allocated between the products sold and the points issued, with the
consideration allocated to the points being equal to their fair value. Fair value is determined by applying

statistical techniques.

The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue when the points are redeemed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. All differences are taken to profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of comprehensive income are translated into Hong Kong dollar at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset value has
not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or leased out separately
under a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the property is an investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services are
so significant that a property does not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Provision for inventories

Management reviews the ageing analysis of inventories of the Group at the end of each reporting period,
and makes provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for
sale. The assessment of the provision amount required involves management judgements and estimates.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the original estimate, such differences
will have an impact on the carrying value of the inventories and provision charge/write-back of provision
in the period in which such estimate has been changed. In addition, physical counts on all inventories are
carried out on a periodical basis in order to determine whether provision needs to be made in respect
of any obsolete inventories identified. The Group carries out an inventory review at the end of each
reporting period and makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving items. Management reassesses
the estimation at the end of each reporting period. The directors of the Company are satisfied that
sufficient provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories has been made in the consolidated financial
statements. The carrying amounts of the Group’s inventories as at 30 June 2011 was HK$412,166,000
(2010: HK$300,480,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and investment properties

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the asset. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the asset and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amounts of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
and investment properties as at 30 June 2011 were HK$147,634,000 (2010: HK$129,248,000) and
HK$32,686,000 (2010: HK$34,454,000), respectively.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The amounts of
unrecognised tax losses for subsidiaries situated in Hong Kong, mainland China, Taiwan, Singapore
and Malaysia at 30 June 2011 were HK$653,000 (2010: HK$439,000), HK$87,579,000 (2010:
HK$45,935,000), HK$90,801,000 (2010: HK$77,823,000), HK$40,079,000 (2010: HK$30,652,000)
and HK$5,388,000 (2010: HK$4,770,000), respectively. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it
is not considered probable that taxable profit will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Further details are contained in note 29 to the financial statements.
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BEREHE R A (&)

AT T EZ (F)

Y% BERZEARIKEYEZHE
AEEEVBFETAERARE BETEESGLRAAEAEE
EZFREEEL G A EREERAEETHREEEZTE
HARBSREEL G TE2RECETREFEZSHENR
EZRE - R-T—FXA=Z1TH AEEDE  BEREBEIN
MR B YE ZREED B AB% 147,634,000t (— T — T4 : B
129,248,0007T) K2 7 #32,686,0007T (= Z —Z4F : 534,454,000
JT) e

BT I & B

FIEARBRIEES BB ERENERERT 27 BIEEHEZSE
B8 - AR AERLERIBEE - EEAIHRAZELERIEEESRER -
IR B AR IR AR 2R B AR Bk | 2 AT B B ) R K T LA Je R 2R BR A5 #R &
REERERYE - R=ZF——FA=1+H  R"&F - FEIKRE -
BE  FNERERATZWBRRZ KRERTIEBES B B
653,00070 (—Z—2Z4F : ##5439,0007T) * /B#87,579,0007T (=&
—Z 4 : 75 %45,935,0007T) * 5 1#90,801,000T (ZF—ZTF : &
#77,823,0007T) ~ B#40,079,0007T (—ZZ—Z4F : ##30,652,000
J0) K %45,388,0007T (=& —Z 4 : #5%4,770,0007T) - AR #ZE
MBAREEABE —BERARRAWEA LS A AERBETGEES
BZEREEN  RUERZTHEERRELRIBEE - 5FBHN
B ek R I #E29 -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units that offer products to customers
located in different geographical areas and has four reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) Hong Kong

(b) Mainland China

() Taiwan

(d) Singapore and Malaysia

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The
adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that
interest income and finance costs are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude tax recoverable and deferred tax assets as these assets are managed on a group

basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and tax payable as

these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Group
Geographical segments

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and certain asset, liability and expenditure information
for the Group’s geographical segments for the years ended 30 June 2011 and 2010.
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4. BESHER (H)
L]
i 5 8
TRENAKBBRE_ZT——FR_T-"TFA=THLFER
i HB|zWE B8R (BB RETEE BERFAXEH -

Hong Kong Mainland China Taiwan Singapore and Malaysia Consolidated
&% B K =y | ESIE 958 L) &4

in HK$ thousand 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
BT T 2% —E-TF —E——% —E-TF B —E-TF B —E-TF —E——% —E-TF
Segment revenue:
DR -

Sales to external customers

HE TINEEE 1,410,166 1,280,717 655,770 527,618 292,658 260,319 283,373 237,606 2,641,967 2,306,260

Other income

Hlr A 9,432 5,829 7,564 2,559 751 1,157 264 33 18,011 9,578
Total
HET 1,419,598 1,286,546 663,334 530,177 293,409 261,476 283,637 237,639 2,659,978 2,315,838
Segment results
PEEE 222,984 169,282 (58,464) (38,228) (4,895) (4,031) 4,740 (14,521) 164,365 112,502
Interest income
2 WA 3,202 1,919
Profit from operating activities
LB A 167,567 114,421
Finance Costs
B E R A (7,548) (4,939)
Profit before tax
BR Tt Al ) 160,019 109,482
Income tax expense
FTiS R X (29,906) (19,031)
Profit for the year
F N4 F 130,113 90,451

The revenue information above is based on the location in which the sales originated.

bt ER IRIBHEE L EE D o
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RESFER (F)
Geographical segments (continued) i o5 38 ()
Hong Kong Mainland China Taiwan Singapore and Malaysia Consolidated
&8 R KB =) | 30K K R R )

in HK$ thousand 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
BETT —EBE-—f —T-TF —EB-—f —T-TF —2——F —Z-TF —2——-F —E-TF —2——F —Z-TF
Segment assets

DEEE 710,476 722,939 388,255 265,699 118,302 81,635 117,760 96,725 1,334,793 1,166,998

Unallocated assets
ADEEE 1,101 2,219

Total assets
BEE 1,335,894 1,169,217

Segment liabilities
DEEE 219,493 189,840 90,175 109,595 30,878 24,185 15,032 8,055 355,578 331,675

Unallocated liabilities

KHOBEEE 182,882 105,769
Total liabilities
waE 538,460 437,444
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RESBER (F)
Geographical segments (continued) 35 5 8 ()
Hong Kong Mainland China Taiwan Singapore and Malaysia Consolidated
&8 R KB =) | 303K K B R R )

in HK$ thousand 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
BETT —E-—-f —T-TF —2——F —T-TF —2——F —E-TF —2——F —E-TF —2——F —Z-TF
Other segment information:
HitpEEH :

Capital expenditure*

BRI 38,784 26,145 23,040 19,562 18,297 10,531 9,619 3,834 89,740 60,072

Depreciation

neE 31,301 32,798 24,237 24,142 11,204 7,807 8,992 8,680 75,734 73,427

Loss on disposal/write-

off of items of property,

plant and equipment
HE /M

BERBEER 2

BB 143 181 388 377 210 712 695 971 1,436 2,241
Provision/(write-back of

provision) for inventories

BERE/
(Bfa%E) 1,997 3,322 7,568 5,617 1,694 (2,410) (163) 607 11,096 7,136
Impairment of debtors
JE U BR TR (B 203 11 92 474 - = - 5 295 490
Non-current assets**
FEMEEE** 163,201 143,538 30,867 33,741 30,255 19,996 31,920 31,580 256,243 228,855
*  Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment. *  BARTBEREVE BERSE-
**  The non-current asset information above is based on the location of assets and excludes deferred tax assets. ** BN EECEN NRBEEEMAENAE TOEELERHE
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
Group

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the aggregate of the net invoiced value of goods

sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows:

W a8 K H AU A

L]

Wt (FEIARBZ 2% DR EERBRTHRZEEERER
BEE-

Yoz K A Z DT T

2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E2——F —E-TF BT T
Revenue: U zs
Retailing and distribution of garments 2,641,967 2,306,260 RIKEE kD
Other income: L PNE
Interest income 3,202 1,919 MR A
Claims received 6,765 1,917 B R EKIEA
Royalty income 3,736 2,831 BEHREBRA
Gross rental income 3,408 1,543 HEWAEE
Others 4,102 3,287 H
21,213 11,497
2,663,180 2,317,757
6. FINANCE COSTS BB KA
Group =m
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEKAIHIT :
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F —E-TF BT T
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable BERAFANBBEEZ
within five years 7,548 4,939 RITERZHE
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Group
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr 2 b

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

7. BRBAIER
L]
AEBBRBAEFEHER(GTA) TFIEE :

2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E-——fF —ET-TF BT T
Cost of sales: SHEERKAN ¢
Cost of inventories sold 1,276,644 1,108,979 ELEFEZKA
Provision for inventories 11,096 7,136 FERE
1,287,740 1,116,115
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration — note 8): BTIRA(BIEEEIE —KES)
Salaries and wages 408,634 367,788 HeRhIA&
Equity-settled share option expense 4,823 2,548 BnEEERERE
Pension scheme contributions 33,984 28,122 BRI FT B R
Less: Forfeited contributions = = B R U AR R
Net pension scheme contributions (note a) 33,984 28,122 R T EF M (fizEa)
447,441 398,458
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (continued)

7. BR®AIER (&)

AEBEZBRBADEM B (GEA) THIEE : (8)

2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —T——F —E-TF BT T
Depreciation (notes 14 and 15) 75,734 73,427 & (MsE14%15)
Minimum lease payments under operating leases: ERE T EBEERN
Land and buildings 367,984 343,730 THRETF
Contingent rents of retail shops and department stores 48,764 42,899 TEERRBERARZHAES
Plant and machinery 795 767 BRI 5
417,543 387,396
Auditors’ remuneration 3,103 2,708 ZEETEN &
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, HE /MEME  BEREREEEB
plant and equipment 1,436 2,241 Z 51
Impairment of debtors (note 19) 295 490 JEW AR FORE (H95E19)
Write-back of provision (note 28) (1,313) (3,065) B R E (Pffsr28)
Foreign exchange differences, net (19,588) (5,718) SNEHER - JFE
Net rental income (note ) (3,152) (1,322) HeWAFEE (Mo
Rental income on investment properties with no direct WREAEELERT 2IREMERSBA (i)
operating expenses (note c) (3,146) (1,313)
Fair value loss/(gain) on a structured deposit (433) 139 ERETER 2 AFEEE (W)
Fair value losses, net on derivative financial instruments MTEemIAZAFEREE
— transactions not qualifying as hedges (note b) 4,202 990 —THEEREREFNRS (iEb)

Notes:

(@) Asat30June 2011, forfeited contributions available to the Group to reduce its contributions to the ORSO Scheme

in future years amounted to HK$172,000 (2010: HK$172,000).

(b) The fair value losses, net on derivative financial instruments — transactions not qualifying as hedges were included

in “other operating expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

(c) Rental income on investment properties was included in net rental income.
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEM=
Group £8
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong BEETMARUREBRAGOIBI6UERERBECAFEESTHE
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: LU
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E2——F —E-TF BT T
Executive directors: WITESE:
Fees 81 - we
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 7,869 6,111 e RMEREYRE
Performance related bonuses 3,047 2,674 AR IRAE A 2 TEAL
Equity-settled share option expense 1,884 1,136 M o5 At S B AR A B <2
Pension scheme contributions 35 29 RIS ETEI R
12,916 9,950
Non-executive director: EMITES
Fees - 217 we
Independent non-executive directors: BUIEITES -
Fees 618 493 e
13,534 10,660
The total remuneration included performance bonuses payable to the executive directors of HK$3,047,000 & BB BERNNITES 2 EMICAES,047,000T (Z 2 —F
(2010: HK$2,674,000). F : #5¥52,674,0007T) °
Share options were granted to the directors in respect of their services to the Group under the share option RAARREFRARNEBRERBMARERL AR ABERESET
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 31 to the financial statements. The ZHERE - FRHN VS mERMEES - BEBEREZ A TFETIRE
fair value of such share options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, was HHBETE  WEREBPMEBRRER  RAFET AMBHRE
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the current year ZEBEFALMEETME 2 HEA -

is included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEME (&)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were as follows: RERNEXNTBEIINTESTZRESAT
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —B——fF —E-TF P T
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han 238 231 REMEZ L
Mr. WONG Wai Kay (note a) - 77 T 4 E A (B sEa)
Prof. SIN Yat Ming 190 185 A=EEE €5
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond 190 - EXEEE
618 493
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive directors during the year FAWBMENBLIFNTESZHMBME (ZZE—FF : &) -
(2010: Nil). None of the independent non-executive directors waived remuneration during the year. In FN - BEBIERTEETHENE - REF - EETLEN
prior year, Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond waived remuneration of HK$185,000. B & 4 %185,0007T ©
Note: B 5E
(@) Mr. WONG Wai Kay retired as an independent non-executive director on 30 November 2009. @ IHELEER-ZTNGT+—A=THEEBIFNITES-
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEM<E (&)
(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director (b) HITEERFEHTES
Equity-
Salaries, settled
allowances Performance share Pension
and benefits related option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions  remuneration
W 2B BRFEE BREHE Bike
in HK$ thousand we REYW S Z T4 BB X STEIHER MewE BETT
2011 —E2——fF
Executive directors: BITEE:
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (note a) 81 993 703 459 9 2,245 2Rt (iita)
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund - 2,712 1,739 1,970 12 6,433 BESLE
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul bR = 5k 5t A (B Eb)
(note b) - 1,138 605 375 10 2,128
Ms. CHAN So Kuen (note c) - 3,026 - (920) 4 2,110 &=L L (M)
81 7,869 3,047 1,884 35 12,916
2010 —E-EF
Executive directors: BITEE:
Mr. LAW Ka Sing (note d) = 205 = = 2 207 BRESLAE (Hixd)
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund = 1,768 2,624 399 12 4,803 BESLE
Ms. CHAU Wai Man Pansy (note e) - 342 - 71 3 416 BZZzt (HizTe)
Ms. CHAN So Kuen (note ¢) = 3,796 50 666 12 4,524 BRE1B 20+ (fifsEc)
- 6,111 2,674 1,136 29 9,950
Non-executive director: FERMTES
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (note a) 217 = = = = 217 g2t (fia)
217 6,111 2,674 1,136 29 10,167
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8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director (continued)
Notes:

(a)

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess was appointed as a non-executive director on 1 November 2009 and subsequently
re-designated as an executive director on 1 October 2010. During the period from 1 July 2010 to 30
September 2010, these was no significant remuneration for Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess for the capacity as a
non-executive director.

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul was appointed as an executive director on 30 August 2010.

Ms. CHAN So Kuen resigned as an executive director on 1 October 2010. All unexercised share options held
by her forfeited on 1 January 2011 in accordance with the terms of share option scheme.

Mr. LAW Ka Sing resigned as an executive director on 21 August 2009.

Ms. CHAU Wai Man Pansy was appointed as an executive director on 5 October 2009 and subsequently

resigned on 21 December 2009, and prior to that period, she was appointed as a senior management of the
Group.

There was no arrangement under which an executive director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Group

The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2010: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2010: three)

8. EEM< (&)
(b) HITESKRIHTES (H)
M -

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

BEBRLTR_TENFT—A—BEZERFRTES  Hig
R-E—ZEF+A-—HAERATEE -A_ZT—ZTFLA—H
ET-TFEAA=THILEHE B2BELTUEREETER
TEEMPRDRERHE -

REREER - ZE-—ZFN\A=THEZERRITES -
MREBLLIER _Z-ZF+A-BBHERTES - EMFAEZ

PAERTEERECREBREF S ZGEFR -_F——F—A—
FORYK -

BRELLCR_ZTTENFNA-_+ - BHERTES -

ARELTRN_ZTTENFTARAHEZERNTES KN =
ZTENFT A+ —BEE - RZBE 2 RATEEZS
REEAE -

FRALBRTESTHRIFABREEAHE 2L

9. IEBREHEER

%8
FRELREHEEEE=E(CTBF MA)ET  HMOH
BERIIN LXHES - RYME (CF—BF : =4) BEHEE

non-director, highest paid employees for the year are as follows: ERENFAZHMEFHBNT :
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F T -TF BT T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,688 5,028 e R REYRE
Performance related bonuses 1,139 1,749 BRIV 2 4L
Equity-settled share option expense 314 518 B EEERERY
Pension scheme contributions 22 86 RIREET B
5,163 7,381
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) 9. hEBREHES (&)
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands MeNFTrIGEEzRmEHFEEREHENT ¢
is as follows:
Number of employees ESZH
2011 2010
—2——% Bt
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 2 752,000,001 T £ 782,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 1 75 #2,500,001 70 2 7 #3,000,0007C
2 3
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRE BB X
Group 56
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable EBFEREEFARE BRI G R EF AR E16.5% (=
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated T—FF 1 16.5%) REEE - EHMAMEMSERF SN2 FHE -
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates. TIREBEAEEEBRENERAR, A ERE 2 BITHESE -
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E-——fF —T-TF BT T
Current — Hong Kong BVER— &%
Charge for the year 29,919 22,036 FRAXH
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years 13 (223) BAEFERBETR (BREEE)
Current — Elsewhere BVER— E Ath 30 [=
Charge for the year 4,049 3,405 FARZH
Overprovision in prior years (4,507) (8,401) BT E RS
Deferred (note 29) 432 2,214 JRIE (F15E29)
Total tax charge for the year 29,906 19,031 FABEZ L BE
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30 June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. RS BiBA % (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory rate for Hong Kong in BERAEA (RNARREKIBMHMBARFEH) 2 A5 EREAE R
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective FERRBR T ADE A2 FIER X SR B R H 2 FIE R X $18K -
tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are URBERARE (BVEEHR) BERRE 2 EERET :
as follows:

2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E-—-F % —Z-%F % BETT
Profit before tax 160,019 109,482 W 5 A
Tax at the statutory tax rate 26,403 16.5 18,065 16.5 BEEREEZFE
Effect of different tax rates for companies REMANEEREE L RA
operating in other jurisdictions (4,344) .7 (3,794) (3.5 RAARE 52
Adjustments in respect of current Bt AR AT
tax of previous periods (4,494) (2.8) (8,624) (7.8) fEHRE
Income not subject to tax (3,057) (1.9 (3,792) (3.5 BRI 2 WA
Expenses not deductible for tax 1,251 0.8 580 05 NAMERIEHRLZ F X
Unrecognised tax losses and temporary differences 15,066 93 16,434 15.0 ARAREEEREREES
Tax losses utilised from previous periods (381) (0.2) (1,311) (1.2) BEHECHBETEER
Others (538) (03) 1,473 1.4 it
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate 29,906 18.7 19,031 17.4 BASEERHRFEZHBES N
11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 11. &2 TS A BEAE & B F

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2011 includes a BE—_S—— & NA=+RILEEZAATEEARLGEARNE
profit of HK$104,231,000 (2010: HK$59,470,000), which has been dealt with in the financial statements FE s F7E 104,231,000 (= E—F 4 : B#59,470,0007T) * Wi,
of the Company (note 32). RAER DB BT A (BF5E32) o
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12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F —E-TF BT T
Interim — HK2.20 cents (2010: HK1.10 cents) per ordinary share 35,583 17,595 FH - SR AR2 2080 (= —ZFF : 1.1051L)
Proposed final — HK3.03 cents (2010: HK2.30 cents) R R EA — S AR T AR 3,037 1L
per ordinary share 49,061 36,844 —ET-TF : 2.3081)
Proposed special — HK1.20 cents (2010: HK0.30 cent) B Rl — TR AR . 2078110
per ordinary share 19,430 4,806 —T—FF : 0.3081)
104,074 59,245

13.

The proposed final dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable as of 30 June 2011, but will be recorded
as a distribution of retained earnings for the year ended 30 June 2011. The proposed final dividend of
HK$49,061,000 and the proposed special dividend of HK$19,430,000 for the year are calculated based on
1,619,179,394 shares of the Company in issue and subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$130,113,000 (2010: HK$90,451,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,611,690,901 (2010: 1,596,913,569) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$130,113,000 (2010: HK$90,451,000). The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue of 1,611,690,901 (2010: 1,596,913,569)
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 21,075,739 (2010: 7,391,929) assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

13.

Bk KRARETERMIEZTE——FNA=+THZEMEKE '
BeARIWEEE - T—— & NAZ+TBHLFEZREEMN 2D
& o ANFE 7 R R HA R B B #549,061,0007T K R 5 Bl I% B8 #E
19,430,0007T T iRIEAN A &) 2 B 21T 191,619,179,394k 51 & - W
BARAANBIREREERRBEFAS LRER - HOEE -

AR EBREaREABRGERER

FREARRF TIRIEAR DR HEE AL F A E A %130,113,000
TT(ZZE—Z4F : B1#90,451,0007T) M E R D BT E B INEFY
#01,611,690,901 18 (—Z—F 4 : 1,596,913,5690% ) 51 & o

GRREEE RN THIREA R EHESE ABLF NEFE%130,113,0007T

ZET—ZF : #%90,451,00070) 5T E o st EATA 2 E @A MEF
BEE BARTESRELREN 2 FAE EITEB%1,611,690,901
B (ZZF—Z4 :1,596,913,5690%) + RERBZWARVEBETE L8R
FrEE#EE HTRaRk AT BRMZTARBEITZ L BERINETEY
£021,075,7398 (= —Z 4 : 7,391,929/%) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr B e

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERSRE
Group £E8
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
nE BER KA EER
in HK$ thousand T REF MEEE s WMAERE RE “iE BT T
2011 —EB——F
At 30 June 2010 and RZE-—ZTFA=THEK
at 1 July 2010: —_E-ZF+A—H:
Cost 20,500 325,697 75 159,140 1,091 506,503 B AME
Accumulated depreciation (6,113) (254,426) (75) (115,785) (856) (377,255) REE
Net carrying amount 14,387 71,271 = 43,355 235 129,248 R FE
At 1 July 2010, net of RZE—TF+H—H "
accumulated depreciation 14,387 71,271 - 43,355 235 129,248 Kk EENE
Additions - 66,182 - 22,216 1,342 89,740 NE
Disposals/write-off = (1,145) = (554) = (1,699) e s
Depreciation provided during the year (596) (51,770) — (21,366) (234) (73,966) FARTERE
Exchange realignment - 3,065 - 1,238 8 4,311 bE 5 78 &
At 30 June 2011, net of RZZE——FR"A=TH"
accumulated depreciation 13,791 87,603 = 44,889 1,351 147,634 MR REITE
At 30 June 2011: RZTE——FRA=+H:
Cost 20,500 331,087 8 178,289 2,450 532,334 BAME
Accumulated depreciation (6,709) (243,484) (8) (133,400) (1,099) (384,700) ZRFE
Net carrying amount 13,791 87,603 - 44,889 1,351 147,634 BREFE
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Lupr 2 e

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

14. Y% - BEKRFE (&)

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
Gizh= BER BE - REBR
in HK$ thousand T REF E=3C e N RE @ HEHETF T
2010 —E2-ZF
At 1 July 2009: RZBEZNFELA—AH:
Cost or valuation 82,154 332,385 141 148,538 1,647 564,865 RAE G E
Accumulated depreciation (30,949) (244,181) (128) (109,792) (1,351) (386,401) 2REFE
Net carrying amount 51,205 88,204 13 38,746 296 178,464 BREFE
At 1 July 2009, net of RZZEZNFEHA—H -
accumulated depreciation 51,205 88,204 13 38,746 296 178,464 mNREBEHE
Additions = 37,473 = 22,581 18 60,072 NE
Disposals/write-off = (2,400) (9) (800) = (3,209) HE 8l
Depreciation provided during the year (596) (53,258) (4) (17,719) (82) (71,659) FRNFTERE
Transfer to investment properties (36,222) = = = = (36,222) HEBEEREYE
Exchange realignment - 1,252 - 547 3 1,802 P& 5 38 &
At 30 June 2010, net of RZE—TFA=+AH"
accumulated depreciation 14,387 71,271 = 43,355 235 129,248 MR 2B E
At 30 June 2010: RZE—ZEFA=+H:
Cost 20,500 325,697 75 159,140 1,091 506,503 AN E
Accumulated depreciation (6,113) (254,426) (75) (115,785) (856) (377,255) 2ENE
Net carrying amount 14,387 71,271 - 43,355 235 129,248 BREFE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

30 June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

In prior years, certain land and buildings were revalued at 31 July 1993 by Chesterton Petty Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers, on an open market, existing use basis. Since 1994, no further
revaluations of the Group’s land and buildings had been carried out, as the Group had relied upon the
exemption granted under the transitional provision in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16, from the requirement
to carry out future revaluation of its property, plant and equipment which were stated at valuation at that
time. Last year, such land and buildings which were occupied by the Group as owner-occupied properties
became investment properties since the date of change in use. As the Group used the cost model for
investment properties, such transfer did not change the carrying amount of the land and buildings
transferred.

Land and buildings with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$13,791,000 (2010: HK$14,387,000) as
at the end of the reporting period were revalued as at that date by RHL Appraisal Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, based on open market basis assuming sale with vacant possession, at an
aggregate open market value of HK$89,000,000 (2010: HK$84,000,000).

14.

Y2~ BB K& ()

MBEFE BT LHREFTHBELYAZZERMEERMS28IE
MTERARR—NAN=F+tA=+—BRAATSABEEREZ
HEEMBE - B-NNAOFE  ARAEERAEE ST ERIZE 16
SREEBOAR Z MIEM RRGX - SMEHABREYME - BFE KR iEE
THEREMYRER ZAEEIIRIAE  RAKEZ L RETE
TEM - RNEF  AEBEREERZABEL L NETERNE
BEAKRRRENE - ARAKEREREMERAKAES - B
BETSREFER LI RIET 2 REE -

RBEHRZEEAEEB 13,791,000 (ZTE—FF : Bk
14,387,0007T) 2 L RIEFRE AABL EES & KA ERXF
T EBHERARRIEBEATZARMBEESHEEZ AR
TiE& £ &75189,000,0007T (= —Z 4 : #1#84,000,0007T) °

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REY=
Group 58
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F T -5 BT T
Carrying amount at beginning of year 34,454 - REYREE
Transfer from property, plant and equipment - 36,222 EEEME  WE REE
Depreciation provided during the year (1,768) (1,768) FRITERE
Carrying amount at end of year 32,686 34,454 RELEREE

The Group'’s investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and are held under medium term leases.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at the end of the reporting period by RHL Appraisal
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, at HK$87,760,000 (2010: HK$69,700,000) on an
open market, existing use basis. All investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases,
further summary details of which are included in note 33(a) to the financial statements.

16.

Further particulars of the Group's investment properties are included on page 172.

TRADEMARK
Group

in HK$ thousand

15.

16.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr 2 b

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

REYE ()

REBZREMERBLBES BRGHEMKFITHEBRBRAD
ARMERRZ AR REERS 2 EES I RAB187,760,000
TT(ZZF—Z4F : #%69,700,0007T) ° FTEREMETIRELEH
ERTFE=F FRE—THEERFRMIEREME33@0) °

ERAKBEREMEZE - HHBEANEIT2H -

HE
%8

BT T

2011

Cost at 1 July 2010 and at 30 June 2011,
net of accumulated impairment

At 30 June 2011:
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

2010

Cost at 1 July 2009 and at 30 June 2010,
net of accumulated impairment

At 30 June 2010:
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

1,164

1,164

1,164

1,164

1,164

1,164

—_E——F

RIE—ZFLtA-BERR-Z——FRA=+H
ZRRAR - kR RIERE

R-ZE——FRA=1H:
DN
ZFERE
FREDR(E

—g-2%

RIBZNFLA-—BRR-ZZ—ZFAH
ZRRZR - kR RIERE

[
-+
m

R-B-BEXA=TA
R
2AE

RREDR(E
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr B e

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

16. TRADEMARK (continued)

Indefinite useful life

The Group classified the acquired “bossini” trademark in Indonesia as an intangible asset with an indefinite
life in Indonesia in accordance with HKAS 38 Intangible Assets. This is supported by the fact that the
“bossini” trademark is a well known and long established fashion brand since 1987, its legal rights are
capable of being renewed indefinitely at insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration, and
based on future financial performance of the Group, they are expected to generate positive cash flows
indefinitely. Under HKAS 38, the Group re-evaluates the useful life of the “bossini” trademark each year
to determine whether events or circumstances continue to support the view of the indefinite useful life of
the asset.

Impairment

In accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets, the Group completed its annual impairment test for
the “bossini” trademark by comparing its recoverable amount to its carrying amount as at 30 June 2011.
The Group has conducted a valuation of the “bossini” trademark as one corporate asset based on the
value in use calculation for the Indonesian market. The resulting value of the “bossini” trademark as at
30 June 2011 was significantly higher than its carrying amount. This valuation uses cash flow projections
based on financial estimates covering a three-year period, the expected sales deriving from the “bossini”
trademark in the Indonesian market and a discount rate of 7%. Management has considered the above
assumptions and valuation and also taken into account the business expansion plan going forward, the
current wholesale order books and the strategic retail expansion in Indonesia and believes that there is no
impairment in the “bossini” trademark. Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable change in
any of the above key assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the trademark to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.
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16. B1% (&)

BREAFH2BHR

AEBEREFB G ERFEIRELEE - #5HE 2 [bossini] F1R
DR —RHEZERPELEE - 24w JIER [bossini | HE B
—NMNEFEERENBERELICAZREME - EAEEMNA
MAPBELXNERZKATERES - Rt ZAKAFH - MER
AEEZRARMBRR  BHRSUERMELRSAA - REE
B EETERE385E - AEBFFEM [bossini | 1R 2 7] i HFH -
NEERRFEEHABREBEX K EERERERFH B -

e

REBEFE ST ERNEISEEERE - A% B [bossini | FHIFN —F
——FRA=tTRZAKRESBENREEFHLERATRESFER
BRI - ARBEEREREEFEHNETHZ [bossini | R (JA
—ERFEE)ETHE - BFHEHETH Z [bossini | RN —F
——FRAZTRZEBEARESREREE - ZHEKBEER=F
Mz MBAETHRERERR - BEH KA [bossini | BIRNEIET 52
HERATRZ TR ERET - EREEREN LRRNEEREE
BARREGEFAE - BATHETERNEERBETERE - WA
1= [bossini | IR B FEHLRE - EREREEMNALEERREE
MAEMACEERITSEYHE LA REEBEAF TR
B e



17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr 2 e

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

17. B A BIRE

Company NG
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——fF —E—TF BETF T
Unlisted shares, at cost 193,962 193,962 JE LT - R ANE
Provision for impairment (50,800) (50,800) VERIERE L]
143,162 143,162
Due from subsidiaries 276,979 236,333 FE UG BT B R R FRIA
420,141 379,495

Impairment was recognised for certain unlisted subsidiaries because these subsidiaries had net deficiency
in assets and had difficulty to repay the amount due to the Company. The amounts due from subsidiaries
included in the Company’s current assets are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand or

within one year.

BMRETHLTHBARBRBEEFBM I REEERNARRZ
A - FiSHB AR ZBEDKIER - RARRIRBEEFALZ
FENH B R R IR EARAR - 2B RIREREFH AN —FREE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

30 June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

17. B A ERE (1)
TEWBARZHBENT :

Place of incorporation/

Nominal value

Percentage of equity

registration and of issued share/ attributable Principal

Name operations registered capital to the Company activities

=18 R/ ZfREEDE ERTRE EAMELZEE AAREERERT DL FTEXK
Direct B # Indirect 1

Active Link Limited (note a) Hong Kong HK$/% #5,000,0007T = 100 Retailing and wholesaling of garments

SAEARAE (MisEa) e R ZE Rt #

Bossini Clothing Limited Hong Kong HK$B 27T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

e R EE R 8H

Bossini Distribution Limited Hong Kong HK$B 1T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

BRESHBRAA] BB R EE R #H

Bossini Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$&#27T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

BRECEBRAA e R EE R 8H

Bossini Garment Limited Hong Kong HK$& ¥ 27T = 100 Distribution of garments

B B X 5 84

Bossini Investment Limited British Virgin Islands US$11,928% 7T 100 - Investment holding

EEAERRES RE K

Bossini Onmay International Limited Hong Kong HK$E#27T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

B LEBEBRERAA BE EREE R H

Burling Limited British Virgin Islands US$1003= 7T - 100 Licensing of trademarks

REBERRAS 1R A

BN EMETEXERAF People’s Republic of China RMBA R #1,010,0007T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

(notes b and d) ("PRC")/mainland China MREE LD
(M 5E b&d) RE AR
(TFRE]) B KR
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of incorporation/

Nominal value

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. B A ERE (1)
FTEMBRARZFBEOT : (8)

Percentage of equity

Cupy E N

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

registration and of issued share/ attributable Principal

Name operations registered capital to the Company activities

=18 R,/ EMkEEhE ERTREEAMELZEE AAREEREB DL FEXEK

Direct B # Indirect 1

J & R Bossini Fashion Pte. Ltd. Singapore SG$2,000,000% i3 7T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

N R EE R 8H

J & R Bossini Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$& 27T = 100 Investment holding

EBREEEBRAA 0 RE R

Kacono Trading Limited British Virgin Islands HK$/5 2,000 - 100 Investment holding

RERARRAHES RE 2R

Key Value Trading Limited British Virgin Islands US$1003 7T - 100 Investment holding

REEARES REER

Land Challenger Limited Hong Kong HKS$&# 27T - 100 Dormant

BAEARAF B Tz

Langzhi Fashion (Shenzhen) PRC/mainland China HK$7 #£6,600,0007T - 100 Dormant

Co., Ltd. (notes c and d) PR B K RE Emegx
ERE ORI BRAA]

(M 5Ecd)

Lead Commence Limited Hong Kong HK$&¥27T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

SRREEBR AR BB R EE R iH

Luhur Daya Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM$ 55 #500,0007T — 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

BT KREE RS H

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 EBREM AR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr B e

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

17. B A ERE (1)

TEMBARZFHBNT - (8)

Place of incorporation/ Nominal value Percentage of equity
registration and of issued share/ attributable Principal
Name operations registered capital to the Company activities
218 B,/ ZMkEEhE ERTRE EAMELAZEE ARREERETS L FEXEWK
Direct B # Indirect B
Rapid City Limited Hong Kong HK$B#27T - 100 Property holding and letting
RAMARRQA 0 MERBEREE
Sun View Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$&# 27T - 100 Property holding and letting
SEFXARAQA BB MERBREE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

(@) The branch of this subsidiary in Taiwan was not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of
the Ernst & Young global network.

(b) BEMTMEMBEEREABRAF is a limited liability enterprise established in the PRC, which obtained its business
registration certificate on 14 July 1993.

(c) Langzhi Fashion (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned foreign investment enterprise with limited liability
established in the PRC, which obtained its business registration certificate on 14 June 1993 and is licensed to

conduct business for 25 years from the date of its business registration.

(d) These subsidiaries were not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network.
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ERENHEER/UAKBEFAREE IR EIBNASEF
BEEZMNZIMBAR - EERREREMHE AR ZF1587
R - RIEFERITE

i

(@ ZMBRARNRAENDRRZKRE  AEMBBLKEIMERAAR
KERHRIEB 2 RIRBREZ -

(b) BMHEMEEXARAANAS—MNTEKRIZEREELE  ER
—NMN=FLtATHBERGFEEHR -

(@ BAERE(CRIDBERARAR—MRTBERIEAIBEEER2ER
BERE - ER—AN=ZFRATHBREISEERR - WHEkEHEEHR
FR B REFHAR & R 15255 ©

d) HEMBARIZKRE  YWHEMBBLRKEAMEBAK L KGEE
TP 2 RERBRE N -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr 2 e

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

18. INVENTORIES 18. Z&
Group £8
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——fF —E—TF BETF T
Raw materials 7,501 4,047 EE
Finished goods 404,665 296,433 LIFX oh
412,166 300,480
19. DEBTORS 19. FEURBR =X
Group £8
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——fF —E—TF BETF T
Debtors 71,248 60,127 FEUAR X
Impairment = (349) RE
71,248 59,778

Other than cash and credit card sales, the Group normally grants credit periods of up to 60 days to its
trade customers. Each trade customer has a maximum credit limit, except for new trade customers,
where payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade customers relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade debtors are non-interest-bearing.

GBREMEABEHEN  AEREE—RERTETEEITFPES
60KREEH - BB ZEFP —RABNFRI  SEHEFPHIR
RREERE - AEERNEHARRE 2 YIRS EFEREEY - 8
HRFESREREERELER - RN EFURARAEER 2 &
WERDBRRBBZ2ZRESEF  HAKBEIESEEDZ
EERR - BREBRFHRE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

30 June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

19. DEBTORS (continued) 19. R AR (AR)
An aged analysis of debtors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as AN RIRNREE Bt IR RN RS IR 2 BRI D 4T -
follows:
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F —T-TF BT T
Neither past due nor impaired 53,569 50,902 Ko H R ARRE
Less than 1 month past due 5,397 3,997 # AR —1E A
1 to 2 months past due 2,684 1,344 BEA—=MEA
2 to 3 months past due 3,362 768 BERmE=EA
Over 3 months past due 6,236 3,116 B HR R i = R A
71,248 60,127
The movements in the provision for impairment of debtors are as follows: FEW R 2 RERESESH T
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F —ZT-TF BT T
At beginning of year 349 227 REA)
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 295 490 BRI EEE (H:E7)
Amount written off as uncollectible (644) (368) AU Bl 2 FRIE A
At end of year - 349 REFL

130 ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 3%



19. DEBTORS (continued)

Included in the prior year’s provision for impairment of debtors is a provision for individually impaired
debtors of HK$349,000 with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$349,000. The individually impaired
debtors relate to customers with outstanding balances which are not expected to be recovered. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

An aged analysis of the debtors that are not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cupy E N

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

19. FEUBRFX (&)

AR FRUERF 2 BB B 2 BB U RR 3R 2 (B IR E B #5349,000
TVER S - EBREE =275 15349,0007T © 85I B < U AR KB T8
HIAAE 2 RPREEEHREM - AEBLRNZLERZ LT
BEMERKEMEERTT -

I EE A R 2k kR AR AR E 2 MR S Z FRE D AT A0 TS

2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——f —TTa S
Neither past due nor impaired 53,569 50,902 R H & ARRE
Less than 1 month past due 5,397 3,997 B —1E A
1 to 2 months past due 2,684 1,344 BE—Z=ME A
2 to 3 months past due 3,362 768 BERmE=EA
Over 3 months past due 6,236 2,767 wERRR = A
71,248 59,778

Debtors that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Debtors that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

R HR TR AR RS 2 8 Y AR R B
BEOESL -

ZTLERFPER  ZBREP&RA

EERBERRAREZ EBREFERSZ BAEEEE R IFBELSRL
BUYEFEAM REBELR ARREFRR  BEARZLSE
SIEMEMRERRE  AEELENEEREH RAERRDERR
A2EKE - REBW KRR ZLESRZ ERATAERLEMEES
Rt -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr B e

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

20. DEPOSITS PAID

20. Effz&

Group £8
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F —E-TF BT T
Rental deposits 111,269 99,527 HEZe
Less: Non-current portion (74,759) (63,989) W, o SEENERER D
Current portion 36,510 35,538 BVER &R 15

The rental deposits are paid for operating leases in respect of land and buildings, and are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to eleven years.

AEBREBET W NEFZEEANTNEERS  FE2HHN T
121MEFRE -

21. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ERARIER A EUWERIE
Group 5%£E Company 2T
2011 2010 2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F —E—TF —E——F —E—T4F BET T
Prepayments 42,842 29,419 182 187 FERT I
Other receivables 33,150 22,919 — - H 4th e W BR 18
75,992 52,338 182 187

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BANK DEPOSITS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cupy E N

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

2. BERASEERBUARBITERK

Group %H Company 727
2011 2010 2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F —T-TF —ZE——F —T-TF BT T
Cash and bank balances 275,809 364,834 400 783 B& MIRITHER
Non-pledged bank deposits 182,233 96,234 = = EEFIRITER
458,042 461,068 400 783
Pledged bank deposits with original BERKRERHAR
maturity of less than three months PR=ER 2 BERRITER
when acquired 1,701 1,523 - -
Total 459,743 462,591 400 783 HET

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi
amounted to HK$70,600,000 (2010: HK$28,829,000). The Renminbi is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
Renminbi for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks and pledged bank deposits earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Short term bank deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term bank
deposit rates. Non-pledged bank deposits of HK$182,233,000 as at 30 June 2011 classified as current
portion are made for three months, and earn interest at interest rates ranging from 0.5% to 1.3% per
annum.

Bank deposits of HK$890,000 (2010: HK$797,000) were pledged to the local tax authority of an overseas
branch of the Group as at 30 June 2011. The remaining pledged deposits of HK$811,000 (2010:
HK$726,000) were pledged to a bank as security for a bank guarantee for an overseas subsidiary of the
Group as at 30 June 2011.

RBERR AEEUARBTEEZR SRR SEEER ABE
70,600,0007t (== — T4 : ##28,829,0007T) - AR EEE M
HME S E MR R B KB SNE B BRI 0 R AETE - S0E R
EERAT  AREREEBERECEINEER ZRITHARKE
HIRBINE -

RITER N A RIPIRITERE BIRBITHERARE T 2 F 8 Rt
B o BHSRITEAREEN TIREIEA - IEFAEE 2 ARBRS
FEME - RIEABZEHRITERFRSE - RZZ2——F <A
=18 - FI{ERNEAER D 2 KRR TF A %6 182,233,000 B #i =
@A« WENTFFNES5%EI3%E ©

RZZB——F R A=1+H  AEER RGN ERPRITFEFTE
#890,0007T (— T — T4 : B#797,0007T) T EWHER - R=F
——FXNA=1TH  FHpEEMEFEREES11,0000(ZE—FF ¢
7 1726,00070) BRI T RITIEAREE KGN B A R ES IR
TR ZER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr BB

30June 2011 —ZT——FXA=+H

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued) 2. B RBEEEEBURRTER (H)
Cash and bank balances, the non-pledged bank deposits and the pledged bank deposits are deposited e RBITHELR  BEARTERREERRITERE FHRAELH
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. I B X rd Sk T BLEE 2 $RAT o
23. TRADE CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. BYERM - Hitt BN RIERESRIE
Group %£E Company 27
2011 2010 2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —ZT——F —ET-TF —ZT——F T -TF BT T
Trade creditors 83,792 105,281 - - FE TR 3K
Other payables 52,852 37,387 358 297 H fth FE AT 5RI8
Less: Non-current portion (380) - - - W, - SERNERER A
Current portion 52,472 37,387 358 297 BUERER 9
Accruals 156,105 128,616 2,368 2,631 FEETERTE
292,369 271,284 2,726 2,928
Group =m
An aged analysis of the trade creditors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the payment due AT B 2 5 H B 5B R R SRS Bk > BR e 4T ¢

date, is as follows:

2011 2010

in HK$ thousand —E——fF —E T BET T
Current 46,573 57,791 Bl B8
0 to 30 days 22,449 40,548 0&E30%
31 to 60 days 6,091 2,908 31E60K
61 to 90 days 1,191 926 61Z290K
Over 90 days 7,488 3,108 #I0K

83,792 105,281
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23.

24,

25.

TRADE CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)
The trade creditors are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms of 30 to 60 days.

The other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average terms of one month.

DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES
The amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free, and repayable within 30 days from
the invoice date.

STRUCTURED DEPOSIT

The structured deposit of US$2,000,000 (the “Principal”) is a time deposit placed with a bank with a fixed
maturity date. On the maturity date, the Principal is guaranteed. The interest rate on the structured deposit
fluctuates based on changes in a basket of currency exchange rates. The Group uses the structured deposit
primarily to enhance the return on investment. The structured deposit was stated at its fair value as quoted
by Standard Chartered Bank at the end of the reporting period.

23.

24,

25.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr 2 e

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

FEABRR ~ Efth B S 7R K FE St AR IR (&)
BRERARER—RNI0RE0RAXZNT -

HiENREALEE  THBERAE—@EA -

N BAE A RRE
ERMERRAZANEER - %8 RANKRE A RH30RAEE -
BB

A& 117 %2,000,000% T (A2 R ]) HERERTEBEERHA
ZEHER - REHB - AMRERE AR - BB EFRZFET
RE-—EFEREREBHMELKNE - NEB 2 EBUEFRETE
RRIBINIRE @R - AEEEERDRIBERREMRETRITARZ
RNFEFIRR ©

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26. TTESRIA
Group £5
2011 2010
———% —z-f
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
in HK$ thousand BE afE BE afs BT
Forward currency contracts = 1,241 695 256 EHEESR
The carrying amounts of the forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values. The above RHEREREEERESE ZATEER - LdFRITESHT
transactions involving derivative financial instruments are conducted with creditworthy financial B R BTVEEEFHEN FAAEA+ 2 ZEBRITE BMEETT

institutions of credit rating ranged from AA to A+.

During the year, the Group entered into various forward currency contracts to manage its exchange rate
exposures which did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. The net change in the fair value of these
non-hedging foreign currency contracts amounting to HK$4,202,000 was charged to profit or loss (2010:
HK$990,000) during the year.

FN - AEETUSERPERSCRANEBEERRRAR  MxE4
BT A RS RTERIE R A2 BRI - TR - ZEIEERINE
ARAFEFEEHSEAEL202,000tEREREFHGR (ZE—F
£ 1 ##990,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Lupr BB

30June 2011 —ZT——FXA=+H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. st ERITER
Group 56
201 2010
—E——f —T-%F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
per annum Maturity Amount  per annum Maturity Amount

in HK$ thousand ERFAR B%A ¢E EREFRX Eli)= £ BT
Current BN
Bank loan - secured 5% - 7% 2011 58,986 5% 2010 27,578 RITEH - BHA

—E-——-F —T-%F
Bank loans - secured 7% - 8% On demand 68,498 4% -5% On demand 33,077 RITEF - BHEA

BER REX
127,484 60,655
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F —E-TF BT T
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable within one year AR —FRNNIRE KR EE
or on demand 127,484 60,655 ZRITEF

Notes: Mok -

(@ The Group’s bank loans were secured by corporate guarantees given by the Company amounting to

HK$260,233,000 as at 30 June 2011.

(b) As at 30 June 2011, the Group had total banking facilities of approximately HK$582,426,000 (2010:
HK$478,779,000), which were secured by corporate guarantees given by the Company.

(c) All borrowings were in Renminbi.
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(@ AEEZHRITEFAARAARRENQRERIEART RZT——F
7NA=+1+HA#%260,233,0007T °

(b)y RZZT——FNA=TH  AKENRITEELTEL FHE582,426,000
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28.

29.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr 2 e

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

PROVISION 28. B&1E
Group 56
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——fF —E-TF BT
At beginning of year 3,643 6,584 R 7]
Write-back of provision (note 7) (1,313) (3,065) B E (fsE7)
Exchange realignment 417 124 ME W B
At end of year 2,747 3,643 NS

Provision is made in relation to a tax claim from the local tax authority on a Taiwan branch of the Group
relating to the underpayment of value added tax during the period from January 2001 to May 2003. The
provision is based on directors’ best estimation of the probable future payments.

DEFERRED TAX
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as follows:

Group

Deferred tax liabilities — 2011
Depreciation
allowance in

excess of related Revaluation

29.

AEEREHWHBRAE-—REEDEENR _ET—F A%
ET=FRAPRINZEBERELEE - AEREIRESRIE
RRA BN 2 ORFE 2 SR fE(dET -

EER R
FAZREHRBABBREEZSMT

%8
BERAAE-—8——4

depreciation  of properties Total
MEEBERB
in HK$ thousand MBI E MESMH e BT T
At 1 July 2010 140 1,857 1,997 R-ZZE—TFLtH—H
Deferred tax credited to the statement of FREZEWERITAZ
comprehensive income RAEFIA (FEE10)
during the year (note 10) (104) - (104)
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised RZE——FRNA=THEGEEVBIRLE
in the consolidated statement of BRELEHIEAEER
financial position at 30 June 2011 36 1,857 1,893
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr BB

30June 2011 —ZT——FXA=+H

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. EEBIIE (&)
Deferred tax assets — 2011 EEBESE-——S——&
Depreciation in Losses available
excess of related for offsetting
depreciation  against future

allowance taxable profits Others Total
RAERERR
8 B A 2R
in HK$ thousand FERBE B2 BB Hity HE BT
At 1 July 2010 166 759 712 1,637 RZE-TF+H—H
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the FREZERERTA (GIR)
statement of comprehensive income ZIEIER A (FF7E10)
during the year (note 10) (89) (587) 140 (536)
Gross deferred tax assets recognised in the RZE——FA=THEREHHMRRE
consolidated statement of financial BRZELCHIEEEERE
position at 30 June 2011 77 172 852 1,101
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29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities — 2010

Depreciation
allowance in

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr 2 e

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

29. JEFERLH ()
EERBRE-—FT-BF

excess of related Revaluation
depreciation  of properties Total
S B ERB

in HK$ thousand B E L/ E =41 #BE BT T
At 1 July 2009 (421) 1,952 1,531 RZBEZNFEA—H
Deferred tax charged to the statement of FANEZE W@ TR Z

comprehensive income EERIE (FFEE10)

during the year (note 10) 561 - 561
Deferred tax credited to equity during the year = (95) (95) FANEERT A ZIEERIR
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RZE—ZTFA=TH

consolidated statement of financial position EFEMBRARERZ

at 30 June 2010 140 1,857 1,997 BERIARBEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr BB

30June 2011 —ZT——FXA=+H

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. EIERIIE (48)

Deferred tax assets — 2010
Depreciation in Losses available
excess of related for offsetting
depreciation  against future

EERREE-—T—FTF

allowance taxable profits Others Total
BAEES A%
FrERBHEE ZERD
in HK$ thousand HERBE B2 BB Hity HE BT T
At 1 July 2009 2,162 = 1,128 3,290 RZZEZNF+HA—H
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FREZERERTA OB 2
the statement of comprehensive ELERTE (M EE10)
income during the year (note 10) (1,996) 759 (416) (1,653)
Gross deferred tax assets recognised RZE-—ZFA=+H
in the consolidated statement of TR TBRARER L
financial position at 30 June 2010 166 759 712 1,637 EXERIBEEER

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated tax losses of HK$653,000 (2010:
HK$439,000) arising in Hong Kong that were available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group had estimated tax losses arising in
mainland China of HK$87,579,000 (2010: HK$45,935,000) and in Taiwan of HK$90,801,000 (2010:
HK$77,823,000) that can be used to offset against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose for a maximum of five years. The Group had estimated tax losses arising in Singapore of
HK$40,079,000 (2010: HK$30,652,000) and in Malaysia of HK$5,388,000 (2010: HK$4,770,000) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also had deductible temporary differences of approximately HK$7,687,000 (2010:
HK$19,658,000) and HK$14,610,000 (2010: HK$10,703,000) in Singapore and Malaysia, respectively, at
the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as
in the opinion of the directors, it is uncertain if sufficient future taxable profits will be generated against
which the tax losses can be utilised.
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RIEHR - NEBRBBE £ 2@ Hi1EEE /B %653,0007T
ZE—TF : B¥439,000T) - ATERHBERBEEEBEND
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RPACEE A 2 (AT TR IEE 1R 5 Bl A5 %40,079,0000T (ZE—FF ¢
751£30,652,0007T ) MBHES,388,0007T (= —Z4F : 54,770,000
JL) - ATEMR AR HE A BB AR BE ZERBUER - RIS
AR - ANEE RTINS & 55 2R P 2 IR A A HUR E B 1 = B B A0S
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29.

30.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

Company
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

29.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr 2 e

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

ERER IR ()

RIBHBEGRMEPUE - RPBEIARERIZHINERE B EMIMEIR
BET RS ABMIO0O%END - BEREN_FTEN\F—H—H
BEM  WHEAR-ZZTLF+_A=T—"BENEHN - ME+PH
REEEINEIRE E B BUEER AT LRI RE - BT se s B m R
0 - RAKEMS - BEAHRERS%  Fit - NEBARNHEA
ERZHZEHB AR -TTN\F— A — B RO BT
B IEInw -

N

AR A A E R RS B BRI B R AT IS

SHARE CAPITAL 30. R A
Company NG
Shares & 5
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F —E-TF BT
Authorised: SETERRA
2,000,000,000 (2010: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,0000% (== —Z 4 : 2,000,000,000/%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000 EREESBE0.107T 2 Lk
Issued and fully paid: BBITREBIRA
1,619,179,394 (2010: 1,601,919,394) 1,619,179,394% (==& —=Z 4 : 1,601,919,394%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 161,918 160,192 EREESE0.107T 2 Lk
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr BB

30June 2011 —ZT——FXA=+H

30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 30. IR A< (4&)
Shares (continued) B0 (48)
During the year, the movement in share capital was as follows: FRNZBRAZEEHIIMT -
Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
in HK$ thousand ERITROEAE ERITRAE B’ 1= E R #st BT
At 1 July 2009 1,593,917,394 159,392 5,506 164,898 N_ZETZNF+H—A
Exercise of share options (note a) 8,002,000 800 1,168 1,968 7T 8 A i (Fif5Ea)
At 30 June 2010 and 1 July 2010 1,601,919,394 160,192 6,674 166,866 RZE—ZEFAA=+HAE=ZZT—ZFtH—H
Exercise of share options (note b) 17,260,000 1,726 10,500 12,226 Tﬂiﬁ%ﬂx% (M 5Eb)
At 30 June 2011 1,619,179,394 161,918 17,174 179,092 RZE——FA=+H
Notes: B &E -

(@) The subscription rights attaching to 8,002,000 share options were exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.175
per share (note 31), resulting in the issue of 8,002,000 shares of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of HK$1,400,000, and the related share option reserve of HK$568,000 was transferred to the

share premium account upon the exercise of these share options.

(b) The subscription rights attaching to 1,560,000, 1,200,000, 3,000,000, 1,500,000, 10,000,000 share options were
exercised at the subscription prices of HK$0.333, HK$0.355, HK$0.357, HK$0.370 and HK$0.530 per share (note
31), respectively, resulting in the issue of 17,260,000 shares of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of HK$7,872,000, and the related share option reserve of HK$4,354,000 was transferred to the share
premium account upon the exercise of these share options.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options issued under the scheme are included

in note 31 to the financial statements.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating and providing
incentives to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations, and to enable
the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group and any entities in which the Group holds equity interests (the “Invested Entities”).

Eligible participants of the Scheme include executive directors, non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors), and other full-time or part-time employees of the Company, the
Company’s subsidiaries and the Invested Entities. The Scheme became effective on 27 November 2003
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other future share option schemes of the Company (excluding share options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme or any other future share option schemes of the
Company) shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on 30 August 2005, the date of
the annual general meeting that the Company seeks the approval of the shareholders of the Company for
refreshing the 10% limit under the Scheme. The number of shares issuable under the Scheme was adjusted
to approximately 156,891,139, which represented 10% of the Company’s shares in issue at 30 August
2005. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting with such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is a grantee of the share options). In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date
of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cupy E N

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

31. BB R8I

ARRIRBEERE ([Zat8l]) B EMERRBEAKERE
FHERZABR2RE  BHASEEFEREERESR LR
WEARERASERERECEMNER(REER)MEEEE
ZANEIR °

ZATBIZABERSEALBRARA ARFMBRARMKEERE
ZHTESE FUTES (BRBUFRTES) REMEBIGRE
BE - ZAER _ZET=F+ A +HEBER BIELFENUR
77 NEHHIER] - BRIEZ B ARHR10%E -

BIEZTEI R A RIS R B B TR E 2T BR
ETER FHITZ2ROEREE (TRERET SIS AR FME
] 3 SR E A R AR AT BN I 2 FEARAE) - TRBBRAQF =T
TRHENA=TBEIARR RS RKARRIEF FH &8 LR10% .2 /%
RAFASHBZERITRMDBEI0%  BIFEZE BT 2 KM
HEEAREL56,891,139 ' (EARRN=_ZZERAFNA=1+H
BTN 210% » FAEM12{E B HAR A - B IEREAE AT (A1 3% 5T 2
B2EATBITZEMNEDEE - UARA B EEE ZETRD
1% AR - E—FPERNBAZ ERBERE  AFREREREAS
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AARRESE RS TBAERIEZRRHARSZBZBHEALE
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i
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr BB

30June 2011 —ZT——FXA=+H

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the share options. Options granted during
the term of the Scheme and remain unexercised immediately prior to the end of the 10-year period of the
Scheme shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant within the exercise period
for which such options are granted, notwithstanding the expiry of the Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be less than the
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant of the share
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders” meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year:

31. B AESHE (&)

REZEBETAE L BRI 288 REARASINEXBEIT
KBARBEWER CELBEREZITEHHEERHER I H
BT B & 5 IR RN B AR I I B HARRET 10 R Em o 5T E
BRI R B A BI04 HARD SE M BT M R 1T 2 IR AE - BE &
SPEIEEIR - DAIRBE R R GRA R L BRETE R REE T
LAFTfE o

BREZTEERESERER  EIMBERATZRESE : (IRB
PR B ERAN 2 RIAR D IR B ZX P 2 T M8 ¢ (i) R B AT 518
RS ARRBRMORE R Z FHRTE  Rii)AARBRHEE -
BREYERTHAEABKREXNBRAEG LREZ#EF -

FRZFTE T HARITRZBRENT

2011 2010
—B——fF —E-FF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
NPT REE BRERE NEFETRE BB EE A
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
per share per share
FRE®T T4 BREB T F1n
At beginning of year 0.455 57,800 0.267 69,602 REF
Granted during the year 0.679 45,419 0.455 2,400 FART
Forfeited during the year 0.510 (7,400) 0.499 (6,200) FREIK
Exercised during the year 0.456 (17,260) 0.175 (8,002) FRNTTE
At end of year 0.579 78,559 0.455 57,800 REFLK

ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 3%



31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was
HK$0.872 per share (2010: HK$0.450 per share).

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cupy E N

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

31. BRAET & (&)
FREITEBIRERITE R B2 T HTERERESRERK0.872
T (ZT—F4F : HE0.4507T) °

RBERAR B ARITEBREZITEERITEROT

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
RS A TEE* T
HKS
per share
BRANET
2,700,000 0.530 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 T EEN\FLtANBE-_ZT—t+F+HA=H
4,800,000 0.530 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 —E-EF+ANBE-ZE—+E+A=H
12,500,000 0.530 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 —E——_FtAMHBE-_ZE—+FLA=H
480,000 0.370 19 November 2008 to 18 November 2017 —EENFt+—A+hBEE—+F+—A+ AR
1,020,000 0.370 19 November 2009 to 18 November 2017 —EEAFt+—At+hBE_ZT—+F+—A+\H
2,400,000 0.370 19 November 2010 to 18 November 2017 T F+—A+thBE-_Z—+F+—A+N\H
3,000,000 0.357 26 March 2013 to 25 March 2018 —E—=%=ZA-t+ARBE=ZE—N\F=ZA=-+AH
1,740,000 0.333 15 July 2011 to 14 July 2018 —EZ——F+tA+HBE-Z—)\FtA+MWH
900,000 0.333 15 July 2013 to 14 July 2018 —E—=FtRAt+RBE_ZT-\FtA+HEHA
600,000 0.160 31 October 2009 to 30 October 2018 TEEAF+A=+-—HE-_Z—N\FE+HA=+H
900,000 0.160 31 October 2011 to 30 October 2018 —E——F+A=+—BE-ZE—-N\E+A=1+H
1,500,000 0.160 31 October 2013 to 30 October 2018 B =FtA=+—BZ_Z—N\F+A=+H
480,000 0.456 4 February 2011 to 3 February 2020 —E——%_-_HAWMA é_%?_fi A= EI
720,000 0.456 4 February 2012 to 3 February 2020 —E—CF_AMRAEFT-_TF_H=
1,200,000 0.456 4 February 2013 to 3 February 2020 T ZF-_ANHBE-_E-_TF_A= EI
15,500,000 0.503 note (a) Wuf( )
5,152,000 0.780 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 —_E——F+A+-BE_E-_EF+A+—H
648,000 0.780 12 October 2012 to 11 October 2020 B+ A+ HE_ZE_ZTHF+A+—H
8,160,000 0.780 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 Bt /At+-HE-_ZT-_ZTF+/+—H
11,800,000 0.780 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 —E-—RFtA+-BE_ZE-_EF+A+—H
974,000 0.780 note (b) 5 (b)
216,000 0.922 3 January 2012 to 2 January 2021 2 —_F#—AzZHE-_ZT-_—F—HF=H
324,000 0.922 3 January 2013 to 2 January 2021 = A=ZHE-_Z-_—%—H_-H
540,000 0.922 3 January 2014 to 2 January 2021 —E—MF—-—A=ZHE=-ZT=-—F—H=H
225,000 0.922 note () M aE(Q)
80,000 0.894 note (d) M 5E(d)

78,559,000
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30 June 2011 —ZT——FXA=+H

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

31. B AESHE (&)

2010 —E-FF
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
B E TEEE TS
HKS
per share
BRAK T
7,000,000 0.530 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 —EE)N\FLtANBE=_ZE—+tFEA=H
10,500,000 0.530 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 - EF+ANEE-_ZT—+HE+HA=H
17,500,000 0.530 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 - —HF+tANHE-_ZT—tF+HA=H
1,200,000 0.370 19 November 2008 to 18 November 2017 —EENFt+—At+hBE=_ZE—+F+—A+N\H
1,800,000 0.370 19 November 2009 to 18 November 2017 —EENFt+—At+hhBEE—+F+—A+NHR
3,000,000 0.370 19 November 2010 to 18 November 2017 —ZEF+—A+NhBAz_ZEZ—+&F+—A+N\H
240,000 0.355 28 January 2009 to 27 January 2018 —EENF—AZ+tNBEZZE-—NF—A=-++tH
360,000 0.355 28 January 2010 to 27 January 2018 —Z-ZEF—A-F+N\BE=E—N\F—A=1++tH
600,000 0.355 28 January 2011 to 27 January 2018 —EF——F A+t N\BEZZE—NF—HA=+tH
1,200,000 0.357 26 March 2009 to 25 March 2018 T EEAF=A -+ ABE-_Z—N\F=A_-+HH
1,800,000 0.357 26 March 2011 to 25 March 2018 —E——F=A-+ABHE-Z—-N\FE=A-+HH
3,000,000 0.357 26 March 2013 to 25 March 2018 T E—=F=A-t+AABE-_Z—-N\F=A=-+FHH
840,000 0.333 15 July 2009 to 14 July 2018 —EENFEA+HEBE-Z—)\FtA+MHAH
720,000 0.333 15 July 2010 to 14 July 2018 —T-ZTF+tA+HEBE-ZT—)/\FtA+HWA
1,740,000 0.333 15 July 2011 to 14 July 2018 —E——F+tA+ARAE_ET—)/\FtA+WA
900,000 0.333 15 July 2013 to 14 July 2018 =t At+ARBE_ZE-NFLA+TAH
600,000 0.160 31 October 2009 to 30 October 2018 —EEAFE+A=+—HE-_Z—N\FE+A=1+H
900,000 0.160 31 October 2011 to 30 October 2018 —E——F%+A/=+—BZ=2_ZE—N\F+A=+H
1,500,000 0.160 31 October 2013 to 30 October 2018 —ET—=%+H E+—E| “E-NF+A=+H
480,000 0.456 4 February 2011 to 3 February 2020 —E——F_ANBE-_E-_FTF_-_A=H
720,000 0.456 4 February 2012 to 3 February 2020 = f_i AMA §_ E-_FTF-_H=H
1,200,000 0.456 4 February 2013 to 3 February 2020 —E-=—F-_AWMHE-ZE-_ZTF-HF=H
57,800,000

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar
changes in the Company’s share capital.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes:

(a)

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020. Vesting of the share options is
conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the achievement of 3-year corporate
goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including but not limited to achievement of strategic
goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share options or any portion thereof shall lapse if the
relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 11 October 2020. Vesting of the share
options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the achievement of 3-year
corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including but not limited to achievement
of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share options or any portion thereof shall
lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2021. Vesting of the share
options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the achievement of 3-year
corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including but not limited to achievement
of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share options or any portion thereof shall
lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 2 May 2021. Vesting of the share options is
conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the achievement of 3-year corporate
goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including but not limited to achievement of strategic
goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share options or any portion thereof shall lapse if the
relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

On 5 July 2010, 12 October 2010, 3 January 2011 and 3 May 2011, the Company granted share options
of 17,300,000, 26,734,000, 1,305,000 and 80,000, respectively, to its directors and employees. The fair
value of the share options granted during the year was HK$15,972,000 (HK$0.352 each) of which the
Group recognised a share option expense of HK$4,666,000 in the current year. The Group recognised an
aggregate share option expense of HK$4,823,000 in the current year for the 78,559,000 share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31. BRAESE (&)
BeE

(@

()

i
A=
17,300,00015  26,734,00015 *

ZERBEARATIEAREEEZE T =F AA=THLFEZLE
BREBARNMREZNEEARKRTE E_T-_TFLANA - BR
BONBEBXENARANKRIEBE—Z-—=F A=TRHLE=FH

B AREEIN=FRERR(BFEETRNEZRBAR  MBERE
BRABR)EHMRR - MREXNFHE=_FEERZ - HHEBERE

AR AR

ZEBREVATEAEEBEE T =FXA=THLFEZLR
REENMRBEZNEEARMGBTR 2—F_FF+A+—H - B
EOGBERENARANKRAEKBE T =FNA=THL=FH

CAKEEIN=FEERR (BREETRNERRKEE MK RE
BRABR)EHRMRR - WREXNFHE=_FEERF - BB
SREAE RO G RK -

ZEBBREAVATEAEEEE T =FAA=THLFEZLER
BREGEAMEEENEEXARGBTE 2T - —F—A-HB - BR
%E’Jm BXENEARANKERBE_ZT-—=FA=TRHL=FH

CAEEEIN=FKEER (BRETRREBRKBER MBRE
iiﬁﬁ%) PREFRIR - ARREERER=FEE B E - 1HFBRE

K E MR &R -

SEERENRTEAEERE—E—=FANA=STRILEEZER
BREBRNGREENEXBRBTE E-T2=-—FHA=-H - BR
ENEBZENEARANKRREBEE S —=F~A=1+HIL=FH
B AfEZI =-"F5£EEZ(RRETRNEBREEZE UBHERE
BRI EE) SRR - MAEKREU-"FEEEIZ  HEERE
HEAFAMBHAE SR -

—ZEF+LAAA - ZE—TFF+A+ZH ZF——F—
AR-—Z——FRHA=ZH ARFSFRAEZEERESERT
1,305,00017 }.80,00017 B % #E o 4

N R B 2 AT EAB15,972,0007T (FRE%0.3527T)
EHRAREBNRATEC ERERER B 4,666,000 © AEEFL

R R & BA K i AR 1718 2 78,559,00017 8 A% A2 74 AN 4F 2 HE 72
& HB%4,823,0007T °

X

) A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr B e

30 June 2011 —ZT——FXA=+H

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year was estimated as at the date of
grant, using a trinomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

31. B AESHE (&)

REAMRLZ ESEEBREZ 2 FETIRE L B G - L5
A=A EBER - BEEME L BIRE Z R ARER T
8o TREHARARA ZFHAIRR

2011 2010

3% Tz
Weighted average dividend yield (%) 3.01 2.97 T AR B 2 (%)
Weighted average expected volatility (%) 60.96 42.01 DN 35 78 AR B(%)
Weighted average historical volatility (%) 60.96 42.01 INRE 3G E 520K B(%)
Weighted average risk-free interest rate (%) 2.18 2.90 AN~ 15 428 2 2 1) =R (%)
Expected life of options (year) 10 10 EIRETRATFH (F)
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 0.652 0.455 T RE (FRBET)

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is not necessarily
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 78,559,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 4.85% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The
exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 78,559,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital
of approximately HK$7,856,000 and share premium of approximately HK$37,635,000 (before issue
expenses).

The 17,260,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the issue of 17,260,000 ordinary shares
of the Company, as further detailed in note 30 to the financial statements.
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RBMEER - NARIZTEITE T 2 M AT 2 BB H#EH 78,559,000
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BREITER T 2 BRE - BB R)ETT478,559,000/% FE I
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31.

32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 4 July 2011, a total of 296,000 share options were
granted to certain employees of the Company in respect of their services to the Group in the forthcoming
years. The vesting of these share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective
grantees and the achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June
2013. The share options have an exercise price of HK$0.880 per share and an exercise period from the
next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the Group for
the year ending 30 June 2013 to 3 July 2021. The price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant was
HK$0.880 per share. On the same date, a total of 1,080,000 share options was granted to an employee of
the Company in respect of her services to the Group in the forthcoming years. These share options vest on
the date of grant and have an exercise price of HK$0.880 per share and an exercise period ranging from 4
July 2012 to 3 July 2021. The price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant was HK$0.880 per share.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had 79,725,000 share options
outstanding under the scheme, which represented approximately 4.92% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.

RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial statements. The amounts of
goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 in 2001, remaining
in the consolidated capital reserve and consolidated retained profits amounted to HK$4,987,000 and
HK$20,982,000, respectively, as at 30 June 2011.

31.

32.
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BREE (|

REBERRE R-E——FLANA ARFAETHEERKRSE
MARRFEE RBAEE RS MER S $£296,00000 BB - ZZHANE
WEBRERG  XRBE_Z—=ZFX NA=THI=F8H @
MARANKRAL=FEEREMER - BREZTEESERE
#0.8807C ' T HIBHASRERE T —=F S A=+HILFELE
REAEBEAMERET EEEXREE_T_—F+H=Hit-
ARREMRE L A2 ERAERER0.880T - KRIH » ARF
—HEBIMBNARKEE SR KEIRE IR M E XA 1,080,000
MERE ZEBRERRLBEHNRE  TRELSERIEX0.880
TR R FLANARECE - —F L A=RHIE- &
RERHRE L B2 BRAERE0.880TT -

MEEVBHRRAE AR AR RRIEZLEHEIHF79,725,00017 (=i K
TEZBIRE - HERARRRNZAZE BTN A4.92% -

(G

ESE]

AERMBEFEASRBRERETES CBHEINMBERRZ
RARGEDHHRA R_TT-FRASTEBHERFE305AEH
WEMBARMEELAMR _T——FRNA=ZTBENEREAER
RERGEREENAZHEEED R AE 4,987,000t &8
20,982,0007T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 June 2011 —ZT——FXA=+H

32. RESERVES (continued) 32. f#f& (&)
Company NG
Share Share
premium Contributed option Retained
Notes account surplus reserve profits Total
in HK$ thousand Bt & B 17 32 8 B BB B RE R &R F wE BT T
At 1 July 2010 6,674 157,616 11,557 42,080 217,927 RZE—TFEH—H
Total comprehensive income for the year - — = 104,231 104,231 FAREWEETE
Issue of shares 30 10,500 = (4,354) - 6,146 BT
Equity-settled share option arrangements 31 = = 4,823 = 4,823 S E R
Final 2010 dividend declared - - - (37,041) (37,041) EER-ZZF—ZTFRAKE
Special 2010 dividend declared - - - (4,832) (4,832) BEERK=_ZE—ZFTFHERRE
Interim 2011 dividend 12 - - - (35,583) (35,583) :?E—fEEP H 2
At 30 June 2011 17,174* 157,616* 12,026* 68,855** 255,671 RZTE——FXA=+H
At 1 July 2009 5,506 157,616 9,577 16,144 188,843 —EZ hitﬂ B
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 59,470 59,470 ¢ NEEWEEE
Issue of shares 30 1,168 - (568) - 600 BT D
Equity-settled share option arrangements 31 = = 2,548 = 2,548 %Eﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁi%??‘#
Final 2009 dividend declared - - - (15,939) (15,939) BER-_ZETNFRPKE
Interim 2010 dividend 12 - - - (17,595) (17,595) :gfgﬁﬂtﬂ,ﬁﬂﬂx,_\
At 30 June 2010 6,674* 157,616* 11,557* 42,080** 217,927 R-ZE-—ZFX A=+H
*  These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of HK$255,671,000 (2010: HK$217,927,000) in the statement of * LERERES SRS KR 2 F##EE 255,671,000 (=
financial position. T ¢ ##5217,927,0007T) °
# The retained profits comprise the proposed final dividend of HK$49,061,000 (2010: HK$36,844,000) and bR HE AN AR R R H A B8 4549 061,000 (B — T4
proposed special dividend of HK$19,430,000 (2010: HK$4,806,000) for the year. #536,844,0007T ) F 48R 45 Bl A% B4 #519,430,000 7T (=T — T4 ¢ ,%vgg

4,806,0007T) °
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32.

33.

RESERVES (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company originally represented the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries and the
aggregate net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition, at the time of the Group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1993. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, the Company may make distributions to its shareholders out of the contributed surplus.

The share option reserve of the Group and the Company comprises the fair value of share options granted
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

Group

(a) As lessor
The Group leases its investment properties and sub-leases certain of its retail properties under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from two to six years. The
terms of the leases also require the tenants to pay security deposits.

At 30 June 2011, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

32.

33.
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30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

e (&)
RARZEBABBRIIN—NAN=ZF KRR FKRMH EHAELEE
EAR  ARBRXBIBRRE BETRAMBETZROEE - &
BREBIMBARRKBEANEEFEANZERE REARE
—HN—FREE  ARBATHBARBD IR TEERE

REBRARRZ BREREREBESRLERNRTEBREZ AT
B HBRHERMBEBRERME2ABEUNBROIN KRB 22X H 2G5
BEA - BEFRAEBNAEBREETERERERMEER - X
fisl A i s A JE T SR B N B R

REHE R

£H

(a) ERHEA
AEFRGEREMEZRYET  BHEREMERSBEEETE
EWE  BEZHEASMENFEDNSE - ZHEOZEFIEER
BRHNRERE -

R-F——FXA=1TH ARBERBLHIT 2 TAIREHELZ
REBET  BRKEBEREEREERIBALT

2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E2——F —E-TF BT T
Within one year 2,550 2,621 R—FR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 1,989 1,411 REZFEZFRTF  2REEREME
4,539 4,032

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 EBREMAR AR
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30June 2011 —ZT——FXA=+H

33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
(b) As lessee
The Group leases certain of its offices, retail stores and warehouse properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to eleven years.

At 30 June 2011, the Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

33.

KEeME 228 (&)
(b) EREBEA

AEBAEKLEHEZRYT HRETHAE ZTEEHLE
BRME ZENERECHPE—FET—FI%F-

RZZF——FXA=1TH AEEETAREILEHET
PERREEAEMNIERENIHEMT

2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F —E-TF BT T
Within one year 401,071 349,594 R—FRA
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 387,437 348,966 RE_FZERF  BREEEMF
After five years 13,547 26,235 hF &
802,055 724,795

The operating lease rentals of certain retail stores are based solely on the sales of those stores. In the
opinion of the directors, as the future sales of those retail stores could not be accurately estimated,
the relevant rental commitments have not been included above.

Company

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have any future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 3%

m

=T o)

St of

B HERAE &

ETZEERMZKEHEHSERZSE
EEMARZHERE BN

R BARBAERGTZET
FWEBEEEESARE

o

HIR  ARBETARBELEEET - WEEFARRKER

o



34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Group

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 33(b) above, the Group had the following

capital commitments at the end of the reporting period:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

34. EAEE
£E
B £ X RE33(b)st il 2 AR B T E AIESD - NEBRHE HIR 2%
W

2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E2——F —E-TF BT T
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI B R B
Leasehold improvements 1,495 - HEMFERE
Computer software 700 - ES e
2,195 =
Authorised, but not provided for: BEIREE R
Leasehold improvements = 577 HEMEEE
Computer software 203 - BB
203 577
Company AT
At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have any significant commitments. RIERLEHATR - AN B I £ 4T 7] 8 A RIE o
35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. RAEE
Group 55
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F —E-TF BT T
Bank guarantees given in lieu of utility and REKEREAMEZSZ
property rental deposits 5,438 7,108 RITHEIR

The Company has given guarantees in favour of banks to the extent of HK$693,688,000 (2010:
HK$617,016,000) in respect of banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries. These facilities were
utilised to the extent of HK$179,175,000 (2010: HK$102,920,000) as at 30 June 2011.

AABIRETHBRARFMER ZRITEEERRITIELBE
693,688,0007C (—Z—Z4F : E#¥617,016,000T) ZH#ER R =T
——FARNA=THEHREZEEREAB179,175,000c (ZFT—=F
£ : 751102,920,0007T) °
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30June 2011 —ZT——FXA=+H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

36. BEALRS

Group 56
(a) Material transactions with related parties: (a) HERAEATZEARRS :
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the BREAIG R FTET I 2 2 5 REEBRIN - ANEBNF A HREEA T
following material transactions with related parties during the year: EITZBERZ 0T
Notes 2011 2010
in HK$ thousand P & —T——F —E-TF BT T
Rentals paid for warehouse premises (i) - 117 iS-yicka
Purchases of garments (ii) 180,672 191,175 BE KK
Notes: B3

@

(ii)

The rentals were paid to Bright City International Limited (“Bright City”) and were determined by reference to
open market rents at the inception of the tenancy agreements. A director of Bright City, who had beneficial
equity interests therein, was a relative of Mr. LAW Ka Sing, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess, a director of the Company. As the rentals were settled monthly, the Group had no
outstanding rental payable to Bright City as at 30 June 2011 and 2010. The tenancy agreements expired on
31 July 2009 without further renewal.

During the year, garments totalling HK$180,672,000 (2010: HK$191,175,000) were purchased from certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Laws International Group Limited (“Laws International”). The purchases were
determined by reference to the prevailing market prices. Certain directors of Laws International, who have
beneficial equity interests therein, are relatives of Mr. LAW Ka Sing, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess, a director of the Company. The balance owing to these suppliers as at 30 June
2011 was HK$12,734,000 (2010: HK$21,458,000).

The related party transactions in notes (i) and (ii) above also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group's trade balances with related companies as at the end of the reporting period are
included in note 24 to the financial statements.
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36. BEALRS ()
(b) SREAEA L ZAREBEFIRLER

RBEHR  AEFHEBEARZE S EBRFBHRTHRE
BfosE24 o

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group () XEBFTEEBEAEZHE
2011 2010

in HK$ thousand —E——F T -TF BT T

Short term employee benefits 20,724 17,335 EHRE B R

Performance related bonuses 7,251 6,221 ERRIFAERE 2 TEAL

Pension scheme contributions 238 204 RIREFH IR

Equity-settled share option expense 3,586 2,632 et it H B IR AR B X

Total compensation paid to key management INTEZEEEAB ZHERE
personnel 31,799 26,392

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial statements.

EEfe o —SRBE R U BRKRMES
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

37. ¢RI AESE
RIREHR  SESHITAREENT :

period are as follows:

Group
Financial assets — 2011

L]
THEE - —F——F

Financial
assets at fair
value through Loans and
profit or loss receivables Total
BAFEREBRZRSIR BERR
in HK$ thousand ZERMEE FE U BR X et BB T
Deposits paid = 111,269 111,269 EffiEe
Debtors - 71,248 71,248 JE U BR K
Bills receivable - 7,033 7,033 R EE
Financial assets included in prepayments B ET ATENT 38 & E b fE U BR 18
and other receivables (note 21) - 33,150 33,150 2 mEE KE21)
Structured deposit 15,858 = 15,858 EBMER
Pledged bank deposits - 1,701 1,701 EEIPIRITER
Cash and cash equivalents = 458,042 458,042 RekBEeFHEEE
15,858 682,443 698,301
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

Financial liabilities — 2011

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr 2 e

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

37. M I ESE(H&)

THMAE - —F——F

Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
RAFEREBZER R AR A
in HK$ thousand JIRzeRMEBE JEzeMAR st BT T
Financial liabilities included in trade creditors, EEt AFERBRFR - HAb B RIE R
other payables and accruals - 249,776 249,776 EETERIBEZ @B BE
Bills payable = 46,107 46,107 R EE
Due to related companies = 12,734 12,734 FERTRAE A R FRIE
Derivative financial instruments 1,241 - 1,241 PTEemMITA
Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 127,484 127,484 FTEIRITER
1,241 436,101 437,342

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2R EMAR AR

15

7



158

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr BB

30June 2011 —ZE——F,XA=+H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

Financial assets — 2010

Financial
assets at fair

37. €M I EDHE (&)
EWMEE - —Z2—ZF

value through Loans and
profit or loss receivables Total
BEAFERBZEYR BH K&
in HK$ thousand LEMEE JIE U BR 3R Pk BT T
Deposits paid = 99,527 99,527 SRR &
Debtors - 59,778 59,778 JE W BR R
Bills receivable = 11,283 11,283 R E &
Financial assets included in prepayments B et ATET FRIE K H Ath fE U AR 18
and other receivables (note 21) = 22,919 22,919 ZamEE (H3E21)
Structured deposit 15,440 = 15,440 HEREMETER
Derivative financial instruments 695 - 695 THEERmIA
Pledged bank deposits = 1,523 1,523 EEPIRITER
Cash and cash equivalents = 461,068 461,068 RekReFHBEEHR
16,135 656,098 672,233
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

Financial liabilities — 2010

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr 2 e

30June 2011 —ZE——FXA=+H

37. M I ESE(H&)
EREE - 22§

Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
RAFERBRER IR S A
in HK$ thousand R zeMBE NEZeRARE 5t BT T
Financial liabilities included in trade creditors, EET A ERIR - A MR RIE K&
other payables and accruals = 142,668 142,668 JEEtERIBC 2 REE
Bills payable = 35,034 35,034 FER IR
Due to related companies = 21,458 21,458 FETREE N R SRIE
Derivative financial instruments 256 = 256 MESETA
Interest-bearing bank borrowings = 60,655 60,655 FFEIRITER
256 259,815 260,071

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2R EMAR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr BB

30June 2011 —ZE——F,XA=+H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 37.EMIEDHE (&)
Company AT
Financial assets EMEE
Loans and receivables
BRREWRERR
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——fF —E-EF BT T
Due from subsidiaries 276,979 236,333 A NG
Cash and cash equivalents 400 783 RekFeEMBEER
277,379 237,116
Financial liabilities EMas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
REBERAIEzSHEE
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——fF —E—TF BT
Financial liabilities included in other payables B aT A K 8~ 3008 & FE 5 BR 18
and accruals 2,726 297 ZERMAE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cupy E N

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 38. AFERATFELEE
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the Company’s financial instruments are as AEBRARFEBMIAZEREMERAFENT :
follows:
Group &5
Carrying amounts fREE Fair values 2A¥{&
2011 2010 2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——fF —E-ZF —E——fF —E-TF BT T
Financial assets TREE
Cash and cash equivalents 458,042 461,068 458,042 461,068 ReRkREEFEMAEIER
Pledged bank deposits 1,701 1,523 1,701 1,523 EEIPRITER
Deposits paid 111,269 99,527 111,269 99,527 Efiizs
Debtors 71,248 59,778 71,248 59,778 JRE U R K
Bills receivable 7,033 11,283 7,033 11,283 KR E
Financial assets included in prepayments B EF A TR FRIE & A b fE AR 1E
and other receivables (note 21) 33,150 22,919 33,150 22,919 Z e A E (M&E21)
Structured deposit 15,858 15,440 15,858 15,440 HERB TR
Derivative financial instruments - 695 = 695 MESBTA

698,301 672,233 698,301 672,233

Financial liabilities TREE
Financial liabilities included in trade EET AR BRR - A ER KIR
creditors, other payables and accruals 249,776 142,668 249,776 142,668 REFTREBE EBAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 127,484 60,655 127,484 60,655 FTEIRITER
Bills payable 46,107 35,034 46,107 35,034 NS
Due to related companies 12,734 21,458 12,734 21,458 FERTRAE R B FIB
Derivative financial instruments 1,241 256 1,241 256 TEemIA
437,342 260,071 437,342 260,071

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2R EMAR AR L6j
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr BB

30June 2011 —ZE——F,XA=+H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

38. AP ER A FEREE (&)

Company AT
Carrying amounts BREI{E Fair values 2 F{&
2011 2010 2011 2010

in HK$ thousand —E2——F —E-TF —E2——F —T—EF BT T
Financial assets EMEE
Due from subsidiaries 276,979 236,333 276,979 236,333 FE YL FfT B A~ B 5RIE
Cash and cash equivalents 400 783 400 783 RekBFEeFHEEHE

277,379 237,116 277,379 237,116
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial liabilities included in other Bt AEMENAFRIBEREARIE

payables and accruals 2,726 297 2,726 297 eRBE
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, deposits paid, debtors, bills receivable
and payable, financial assets included in prepayments and other receivables, financial liabilities included
in trade creditors, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank borrowings, amounts due to related
companies, and amounts due from subsidiaries approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments (i.e., forward currency contracts) with creditworthy
financial institutions with credit ratings ranging from AA to A+. The fair values of the derivative financial
instruments are based on quoted prices.

The fair value of a structured deposit is based on a price quoted by Standard Chartered Bank.
Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments:

Level 1:  fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2:  fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which all inputs which have a significant
effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which any inputs which have a

significant effect on the recorded fair value are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr 2 e

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

38. AP ER A FEREE (&)

EREERABZAFERENRZTENBERETRRZEBEA
B RBIFBREERI - ARG AFEZTERRRAOT

ReRReFERE  BEMRITESR SRS BEERR &
WkENZEE SFABRNREREMEVEEz SBEE  ©FF
ABRNER HMEMRBAREFRAEZSRAR FRRTE
o BNEEARRIBRERNBARFRIBEZ AT ERERAER
o IBEHMRZETADNEHAZIE -

AEBHEEEFEN FAAZA+ZEERF SRR BIILITES R
TAREMEEAR) - MTEERTAZ R FETIRIEMBER

= o
Eal

REBUETERZAFETRBETRITABIEBRE -

AFEER
AEEEATIRBETREESRIAZ ATE

B RIEERAERAFROTRTSZRECRERR)HE
2 AFE

- RAMAHERMEHDIRATEEERYE AR
TR 2 HE T2 ATE

E=E: DHRETHEZ TSR GETRRAR) TH 2R

APEEERREZAEMNER 2 HERMNHEZRATE

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2R EMAR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr BB

30June 2011 —ZE——F,XA=+H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued) 38. A ERAFEEE (E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEZEE (E)
Assets measured at fair value: R FEGTEZEE -
Group &5

Level 2
E_E
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——fF —E—TF BT
Structured deposit 15,858 15,440 EBMET
Derivative financial instruments = 695 PTHEERT A
15,858 16,135
Liabilities measured at fair value: TN FEGTEZEE -
Group 58
Level 2
-~y -]
2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F —E—ZF BT
Derivative financial instruments 1,241 256 PTAEemI A

164 ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 3%
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Group's principal financial instruments, other than its structured deposit and derivative financial
instruments, comprise cash and bank balances and time deposits, bills payable and interest-bearing bank
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as debtors, deposits paid and trade
creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including principally forward currency contracts. The
purpose is to manage the foreign currency risks arising from the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out
in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr 2 e

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

39. WK EEEE B ERBUER

AEEZTESRTA (BRBUEEREITESRTARIN BRERE
ARRITEBRRERER - BARBEFERITER - ZFE2BT
AZIZANAKBRESEARERKENT - AEEREMTRAE
MEERAE  PINEEER  ENRERENENR  BEERS
HQERL -

AEBMTUZENER S TERRBREHNERAR HANRE
BRARBEBRES ZINERR -

AEEeRTAZIZRARANERR INERR - EERR KR

PETER EZRBALMEEES BEAR 2K - W
T AKEERITEEM I STBRAN M B RKME24 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

30 June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 3. ik EREEEERBEK (E)
Interest rate risk = 3 bz
Group £8
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s REBERZ TSR LS 2 BB EZBRAEEF A2 FEFRET
interest-bearing bank borrowings during the year with floating interest rates. BERITER °
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with TRETEHMAAZRAZIEOBERT - FEXZSIRA e 8EH AR
all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate EERBIRACER IR E) RANEBRESHE M o

borrowings) and the Group’s equity.

Increase in Decrease in profit Decrease in Increase in profit
basis points before tax/equity basis points before tax/equity
BB RBLATR A, R D RO BRBLATES A, REES 0
2011 2010 2011 2010

in HK$ thousand —E——fF —T—-ZF —E——fF —T-ZF BT T
Renminbi 100 1,275 607 100 1,275 607 AR
Foreign currency risk S = B
Group 55
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from the sales and the investments AEEEZZEERR - BRARRKEUFET RAEUIINGEEST
in foreign operations in currencies other than the United States dollar and the Hong Kong dollar. ZHERIRE - NEBRAT% (ZZE—TF : 44%) ZHETIAET
Approximately 47% (2010: 44%) of the Group's sales were denominated in currencies other than the RABBUIIN BEHE - AEE 2 BERRITURBEEE B ARIE
United States dollar and the Hong Kong dollar. It is the Group's policy to enter into forward currency ANETRABEAIINERE B EAR G FEEZINERR

contracts to mitigate foreign currency risk arising from material transactions denominated in currencies
other than the United States dollar and the Hong Kong dollar.

At 30 June 2011, the Group had forward currency contracts with an aggregate nominal amount of RZBE——FXA=1TH AEEHFERESHBEK107FET (=
HK$107 million (2010: HK$68 million) to manage its foreign currency risk in Singapore dollar and Taiwan T—Z2F  BesTET) 2 RAEKERNEBRBETMETRA
dollar. B2 SNEE R o

ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 3%



39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Renminbi, Singapore dollar, Taiwan dollar and Malaysian Ringgit exchange rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and equity (due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilities).

39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr 2 b

30June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

B By B B R R UK ()

Shis LB ()

TRETERMAZREIZNERT - AR T 8%
NEERZ QBT st B BN IR E FRE NS BRI AN R ks
MR (HREREERARZATFEED) -

Increase Decrease
Increase in in profit before Decrease in in profit before
exchange rate tax/equity exchange rate tax/equity
[ 3= 48 0 BRBL AR R, R N i Sl MRBLATSR, RS
% 2011 2010 % 2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F —E—TF - —E—T4HF e
Investments denominated T3 B ETHE &R
in and investments T & K E 8
linked to currency of: ZERE
Renminbi 5 6,952 2,835 5 (6,952) (2,835) AR
Singapore dollar 5 884 1,236 5 (884) (1,236) 27N T
Taiwan dollar 5 80 392 5 (80) (392) =l
Malaysian Ringgit 5 1,161 1,050 5 (1,161) (1,050) B
Credit risk EEE K
Group 55

The Group trades primarily in cash and credit cards, and it is the Group’s policy to trade on credit terms
with recognised and creditworthy third parties only. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The Group places cash and cash equivalents with reputable banks to minimise the credit risk thereof.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. Concentrations of credit risk are
managed by customer/counterparty and by geographical region. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from debtors are disclosed
in note 19 to the financial statements.

AEEZBSIBUREREMBEIN - AEBZBRBEERR
REBRIEFZE=ZTETRS I AEEE TH ERBKARK
MR MASBAAR ZZREBRBN

AEEBRERRASFEREFEHINBERIFZRT  UKEER

R = RIE
AEEAMEREELFERRKBHF I ZRE  MEAZER

MERZETAZIREE - ST EERBREEETF XHHTTER
K@ oME - REANLTEEAEREERR

ERAREMAZRERKERZEERRZESZE(LEIBC N
BRI 1R -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

30 June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., debtors) and projected

cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility by keeping
adequate credit facilities from banks. The Group had credit facilities from banks of HK$582,426,000 and

approximately HK$179,175,000 was utilised as at 30 June 2011.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

39. M EKMEE B ERBUER (&)
RBESER
FEEMNAEEERDRATAERECEREAR ZTABES
MTARGREE (WERKER) MEHABREAZEELNRS

2
VI

AEBZEEZEAESEZHEMEESBRITRETHEERZE)
EMERSFEH R_T——FNA=1+H  "EEREFZETE
BRE A7 1582,426,0000T @ & H #)751179,175,000C EE A ©

RBERR  AEBERBITOERBRNRZERAEDHER
o

N

Group £8
On demand or less than 1 year

RERSDR—F

2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F —E-TF BT T
Financial liabilities included in trade creditors, EEFAFERBRFR - EAth FETFIR

other payables and accruals 249,776 142,668 NEFRIBz EHEE
Bills payable 46,107 35,034 ANES:
Due to related companies 12,734 21,458 FET R A R 5IE
Derivative financial instruments 1,241 256 PTEemITA
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 129,323 61,281 FTERITER
439,181 260,697
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr 2 b

30June 2011 —ZE——FXA=+H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 30. I EREEEERBE (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) REEEER (E)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on R|WERR  RARERBTNERMBANRZ e AEIHER
the contractual undiscounted payments is as follows: R
Company AT

On demand or less than 1 year

BERIDR—F

2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F —E-TF BT T
Financial liabilities included in other B AT AE M FE I8 R R ER IR
payables and accruals 2,726 297 ZEmBatE
Guarantees given to banks in connection B R EVER 2 EEMmRRITRHAER
with facilities granted to subsidiaries 179,175 102,920
181,901 103,217
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

30 June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management
Group
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio calculated on the basis of interest-bearing bank
borrowings over total equity. The Group targets to maintain a gearing ratio of 70% or below.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 3%
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AEERBEEBANEY RABEENRRSE  EEEELSE
BAEHLAR - RERFIAREAERE  AEEA LSRR RIKE
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The gearing ratio is regularly reviewed by senior management. The gearing ratios as at the end of the

reporting periods are as follows:

39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupr 2 b

30June 2011 —ZE——FXA=+H

MEEREEREREE (E)

BEARERE (&)

EREEETHENEEAGLE KNBEMNRNEEABLL XN
™

2011 2010
in HK$ thousand —E——F —E-FF BET T
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 127,484 60,655 FFERITER
Total equity 797,434 731,773 B
Gearing ratio 16% 8% EEBENLE
40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 40. B ISR R 2 #HE

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21

September 2011.

EERENE—FNAAZ T+ BHERKEZMEVBERE -
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
MEFE

30 June 2011 —T——FXA=+H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REWE

Attributable

interest of
Location Use Tenure the Group
it 2 Ay FH TEBEEER
Unit 1 and 2, 8th Floor, Unit 1, 9th Floor Industrial Medium 100%
Car Park No. L12 on 1st Floor term lease
Cheung Fung Industrial Building
No. 23-39 Pak Tin Par Street
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
AREE P HBH23-2950 I% REEE

RETEABESBIN2E »
9E1E R 1EL1255HE 1
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